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N. MIAN a/k/a Shazia S. Agha a/k/a Shaziq
Mian, individually, and d/b/a Sam’s $1.00
a/k/a Sam’s $1.00 Store a/k/a Sam’s One
Dollar Store; JOHN DOES 1-50; and XYZ
COMPANIES 1-50,

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

1

. 808CV0067-L

?

Defendants.

L L L LT O L O U L LS LS L L L LT LD LS O L L L

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF
Plaintiff, TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC. (“TracFone”), a Delaware corporation, sues
Defendants, SHAZIA & NOUSHAD CORPORATION, a Texas Corporation, d/b/a Sam’s $1.00
a/k/a Sam’s $1.00 Store a/k/a Sam’s One Dollar Store, NOUSHAD A. MIAN, individually, and
d/b/a Sam’s $1.00 a/k/a Sam’s $1.00 Store a/k/a Sam’s One Dollar Store, SHAZIA N. MIAN
a/k/a Shazia S. Agha a/k/a Shaziq Mian, individually, and d/b/a Sam’s $1.00 a’k/a Sam’s $1.00
Store a/k/a Sam’s One Dollar Store, JOHN DOES 1-50, and XYZ COMPANIES 1-50

(collectively “Defendants”), and states:
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INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

1. This is an action for damages and injunctive relief arising out of Defendants’
unlawful business enterprises that willfully infringe on TracFone’s incontestable trademarks,
copyrights, and other rights related to TracFone’s prepaid wireless service, TracFone’s NET10
(“NET10”) branded prepaid wireless service, and TracFone’s and NET10’s specially
manufactured wireless telephones (“TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones” or “Phones™) designed
for use exclusively in the United States, Puerto Rico, and U.S. Virgin Islands with TracFone’s
and NET10’s prepaid wireless service.

2. As set forth in greater detail below, Defendants are engaged in, and knowingly
facilitate and encourage others to engage in, unlawful business practices involving the
unauthorized and unlawful bulk purchase and resale of TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones,
unauthorized and unlawful computer unlocking or reflashing of TracFone/NET10 Prepaid
Phones, alteration of TracFone’s copyrighted and proprietary software computer code installed in
the Phones, and trafficking of the Phones for profit (the “Bulk Resale Scheme™).

3. Defendants perpetrate their Bulk Resale Scheme by acquiring bulk quantities of
TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones from internet sites and retail stores such as Wal-Mart, Target
or Sam’s Club, and by soliciting others (“Runners™) to purchase TracFone/NET10 Prepaid
Phones in bulk for the benefit of Defendants. Defendants then remove the TracFone/NET10
Prepaid Phones’ original packaging and ship them overseas.

4. Defendants acquire the TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones with the knowledge and
intent that the Phones will not be activated for use on the TracFone/NET10 prepaid wireless
networks. Instead, the Phones are computer-hacked. The purpose of this hacking, known as

“reflashing” or “unlocking,” is to erase, remove and/or disable TracFone’s copyrighted and
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proprietary software installed in the Phones, which enables the use of the TracFone/NET10
Prepaid Phones exclusively on TracFone’s prepaid wireless system.

5. The reflashed Phones are then trafficked and resold, at a premium, as new, under
TracFone’s trademarks. Defendants are not, and have never been, authorized retailers or
distributors of TracFone or NET10 products.

6. In an effort to prevent these unlawful business practices, TracFone retailers have
implemented policies limiting the number of TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones an individual
may purchase on a daily basis. Defendants hire Runners and take other steps to circumvent these
policies in perpetrating their Bulk Resale Scheme.

7. Defendants’ conduct, together with that of currently unknown civil and criminal
co-conspirators, is causing TracFone to suffer millions of dollars in losses and has caused

immediate and irreparable injury to TracFone.

8. All conditions precedent to filing this action have been performed, waived or
excused.
9. TracFone has retained the undersigned attorneys to represent it in this action and

has agreed to pay its attorneys a reasonable fee for their services.

PARTIES, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE
10.  This is an action for damages in excess of $75,000.00, exclusive of interest, costs,
and attorneys’ fees.
11.  TracFone is a Delaware corporation with its principal place of business located in
the State of Florida.
12.  Shazia & Noushad Corporation (“SNC”) is a Texas corporation with its principal

place of business located in Dallas County, Texas.
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13.  Noushad A. Mian d/b/a Sam’s $1.00 (“Noushad”) is an individual who, upon
information and belief;, is a resident of the State of Texas.

14.  Shazia N. Mian d/b/a Sam’s $1.00 (“Noushad”) is an individual who, upon
information and belief, is a resident of the State of Texas.

15.  Shazia is also, upon information and belief, the sole director of SNC.

16. Noushad and Shazia’s business in the State of Texas includes, but is not limited
to, contracting for, and engaging in, the bulk sale, purchase, and/or delivery of thousands of
dollars of TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones.

17.  Upon information and belief, yet to be identified John Does and Jane Does 1-50
are present and/or doing business in Texas and are subject to the jurisdiction of this Court. The
identities of the various John and Jane Doe defendants are not presently known and the
Complaint herein will be amended to include the name or names of these individuals when such
information becomes available.

18.  Upon information and belief, the XYZ Companies 1-50, through their agents,
servants, and employees are present and/or doing business in Texas, and are, or shall be, subject
to the jurisdiction of this Court. The identities of such defendants are not presently known and
the Complaint herein will be amended to include the names of the actual defendants when such
information becomes available.

19.  Jurisdiction in this Court is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1332, 1338,
and 17 U.S.C. § 1203 because TracFone’s claims for violations of the United States Copyright
Act, Title 17 of the United States Code, and United States Trademark Act, Title 15 of the United
States Code, arise under federal law, and because TracFone and Defendants are of diverse

citizenship and the amount in controversy exceeds $75,000, exclusive of interest, fees, and costs.
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This Court has supplemental jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367 over TracFone’s state law
claims because those claims are so related to the federal claims that they form part of the same
case or controversy.

20.  Venue is proper in the Northern District of Texas pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§
1391(a) and (b), and 28 U.S.C. § 1400, because Defendant SNC resides in this District, the
impact of Defendants’ misconduct occurred in this District, a significant part of Defendants’
misconduct occurred in this District, and the Defendants are subject to personal jurisdiction in
this District.

TRACFONE’S BUSINESS MODEL

21.  TracFone is the largest provider of prepaid wireless telephone service in the
United States, and markets its service under both the TracFone and NET10 brands. TracFone’s
service enables its customers to prepay for their wireless service by purchasing TracFone airtime
cards and specially manufactured wireless Phones. Customers load airtime into their
TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones using codes generated from PIN numbers found on the airtime
cards, or via TracFone’s website. TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones and airtime cards are sold
through major national retailers such as Wal-Mart, Target, and Sam’s Club.

22. TracFone is considered a “Mobile Virtual Network Operator” or “MVNO” in the
wireless industry. The company is not a facilities-based wireless provider like AT&T, Verizon,
T-Mobile or Sprint/Nextel. Rather, TracFone contracts with facilities-based wireless providers
to purchase airtime on their networks for use by TracFone’s customers.

23.  TracFone’s business model is based upon TracFone’s ability to deliver an
affordable product to its consumers. Therefore, TracFone subsidizes its customers’ acquisition

of the TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones by selling its Phones for substantially less than the
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Phones cost TracFone. TracFone recoups this subsidy through profits earned on the sale of the
TracFone prepaid airtime cards that are required to make and receive calls on the
TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones. TracFone is able to offer its Phones at affordable prices only
if the Phones are used as intended on the TracFone prepaid wireless network.

24.  Manufacturers that produce wireless phones for TracFone install special
proprietary prepaid software, developed, copyrighted, and owned by TracFone (“TracFone
Prepaid Software™), into the TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones. The TracFone Prepaid Software
prevents TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones from being used without loading airtime minutes
from a TracFone/NET10 prepaid airtime card.

TRACFONE’S FEDERALLY PROTECTED RIGHTS

25.  TracFone is one of the oldest and leading providers of prepaid wireless
telecommunications services in the United States. TracFone has used, and continues to use,
trademarks in commerce including the marks TracFone and NET10. In particular, TracFone
owns and has also used the registered trademarks identified below:

a. Incontestable United States Trademark Registration No. 2,114,692 for TracFone,
used in connection with: (1) electronic communications equipment, namely, cellular
telephones, prepaid airtime cellular telephones and cellular telephone accessories,
namely, prepaid airtime debit cards, battery chargers, stands, antennae, voice amplifiers
and microphones; computer programs for use in controlling and monitoring prepaid
airtime cellular telephone service, in International Class 9; (2) providing cellular
telephone services and providing monitoring and control services for use in conjunction
with prepaid airtime cellular phones and debit cards, in International Class 38; and (3)

wholesale distributorship featuring of cellular telephones, prepaid airtime cellular
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telephones and prepaid airtime debit cards, and software for controlling and monitoring
prepaid airtime cellular service, in International Class 42, issued on November 18, 1997
and based on a first use date of June 30, 1996;

b. United States Trademark Registration No. 2,761,017 for TracFone and Design,
used in connection with: (1) electronic communications equipment, namely, cellular
telephones; prepaid air time cellular telephones; cellular telephone accessories, namely,
battery chargers, stands, antennae, headset kits comprised of hands free electronic
earpiece with microphone and holster, hands free headsets, cases with flaps, power
adapters, batteries, carry sleeves, face plates, belt clips, holsters, mounting attachments,
in International Class 9; (2) on-line retail store services featuring cellular telephones, pre-
paid wireless air time cards, cellular telephone accessories and wireless services, in
International Class 35; and (3) providing cellular telephone services and providing
monitoring and control services for use in conjunction with prepaid air time cellular
phones and debit cards, in International Class 38, issued on September 9, 2003 and based
on a first use date of December 2000;

c. United States Trademark Registration No. 3,224,929 for TracFone Nationwide
Prepaid Wireless and Design, used in connection with electronic communications
equipment, namely, cellular telephones; prepaid air time cellular telephones; cellular
telephone accessories, namely, battery chargers, stands, antennae, headset kits comprised
of hands free electronic earpiece with microphone and holster, hands free headsets, cases
with flaps, power adapters, batteries, carry sleeves, face plates, belt clips, holsters,
mounting attachments, in International Class 9, issued on April 3, 2007 and based on a

first use date of December 31, 2005;
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d. United States Trademark Registration No. 3,222,623 for TracFone Nationwide
Prepaid Wireless and Design, used in connection with distributorship services featuring
cellular telephones, prepaid air time cellular telephone and prepaid air time debit cards,
and software for controlling and monitoring prepaid air time cellular service, in
International Class 35, issued on March 27, 2007 and based on a first use date of
December 31, 2005;

e. United States Trademark Registration No. 3,118,250 for NET10, used in
connection with: (1) monitoring the use of debit cards, in International Class 36; and (2)
providing monitoring and control services for use in conjunction with prepaid air time
cellular and mobile phones, in International Class 38, issued on July 18, 2006 and based
on a first use date of March 1, 2005;

f. United States Trademark Registration No. 3,255,754 for NET10 Pay As You Go
Made Simple and Design, used in connection with cellular telephone communications
services provided via prepaid air time cellular telephones and prepaid air time cellular
calling card services, in International Class 38, issued on June 26, 2007 and based on a
first use date of December 31, 2005;

g. United States Trademark Registration No. 3,253,506 for NET10 Pay As You Go
Made Simple and Design, used in connection with electronic communications equipment,
namely, cellular telephones; prepaid air time cellular telephones; cellular telephone
accessories, namely, telephone battery chargers, telephone battery charger stands,
telephone antennae, headset kits comprised of hands free electronic earpiece with
microphone and holster specially adapted for cell phones, hands free headsets comprising

headphones and a microphone, cases with flaps specially adapted for cell phones, power
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adapters, batteries, carry sleeves specially adapted for cell phones, decorative cell phone

face plates, belt clips, holsters, and mounting attachments specially adapted for carrying

cell phones, in International Class 9, issued on June 19, 2007 and based on a first use date
of December 31, 2005; and,
h. United States Trademark Registration No. 3,251,389 for NET10 Pay As You Go

Made Simple and Design, used in connection with distributorship services featuring

cellular telephones, prepaid air time cellular telephones and prepaid air time debit cards,

and software for controlling and monitoring prepaid air time cellular service, in

International Class 35, issued on June 12, 2007 and based on a first use date of December

31, 2005.

26.  TracFone’s aforementioned marks (the “Marks™) constitute the lawful, valued,
subsisting, and exclusive property of TracFone, and as a result of the high quality of TracFone’s
products, services, sales, promotion and advertising thereof, the marks have become an intrinsic
and essential part of the valuable goodwill and property of TracFone, and are well known and
established to customers and the trade as symbols identifying and distinguishing TracFone’s
products and services, and signifying distinctive services of exceptional quality. True and
correct copies of the certificates of registration issued by the United States Patent and Trademark
Office for the Marks are attached as Composite Exhibit A.

27.  TracFone also holds a valid copyright registration, TX 6-515-894, on the

TracFone Prepaid Software. A true and correct copy of the certificate of registration is attached

as Exhibit B.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS REGARDING THE
USE OF TRACFONE/NET 10 PREPAID PHONES

28.  TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones are sold subject to terms and conditions
(“Terms and Conditions”) that conspicuously restrict and limit the sale and use of the Phones.
These Terms and Conditions are set forth in printed inserts that are included in the packaging
with every TracFone Phone, and are also available to the public on TracFone’s website. They
are also referenced in printed warnings that are placed on the outside of the retail packaging of
the Phones. The Terms and Conditions and language on the packaging constitute a valid binding
contract.

29.  The retail packaging in which new TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones are sold
contains the following language that is conspicuously printed in all capital letters in a red banner
on the outside of the package for TracFone handsets:

THIS TRACFONE HANDSET IS SOLD EXCLUSIVELY FOR USE WITH

TRACFONE PREPAID WIRELESS SERVICE. YOU AGREE NOT TO

TAMPER WITH OR ALTER THE SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE IN THIS

PHONE, OR ASSIST OTHERS IN SUCH ACTS, OR TO EXPORT

TRACFONE HANDSETS OUTSIDE OF THE UNITED STATES. THESE

ACTS VIOLATE TRACFONE’S RIGHTS AND COULD VIOLATE STATE

AND FEDERAL LAWS. TRACFONE WILL PROSECUTE VIOLATORS TO

THE FULL EXTENT OF THE LAW. BY PURCHASING OR OPENING THIS

PACKAGE, YOU ARE AGREEING TO THESE TERMS AND THE TERMS

AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE IN THE ENCLOSED USER GUIDE (AND
AVAILABLE AT WWW.TRACFONE.COM).

NET10 handsets have similar language on the packaging, also on a red background in
bold letters, as follows:

This NET10 handset is sold exclusively for use with NET10 prepaid wireless
service. By purchasing or opening this package, you are agreeing to these
terms and the terms and conditions of service enclosed (and available at
www.netl0.com). You agree not to tamper with or alter the software or
hardware in this phone, or assist others in such acts, or to export NET10
handsets outside of the United States. These acts violate TracFone’s rights
and could violate state and federal laws. TracFone will prosecute violators to
the full extent of the law.
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30. The Terms and Conditions included in the TracFone handset packaging also
provide, in pertinent part, as follows:

UNAUTHORIZED USAGE. The TRACFONE handset is sold exclusively for
use with the TRACFONE prepaid wireless Service. You agree not to tamper with
or alter your TRACFONE or its software, enter unauthorized PIN numbers,
engage in any other unauthorized or illegal use of your TRACFONE or the
Service, or assist others in such acts, or to export TRACFONE handsets outside of
the United States. Improper, illegal or unauthorized use of your TRACFONE
may result in immediate discontinuance of Service. These acts violate
TRACFONE's rights and could violate state and federal laws. TRACFONE will
prosecute violators to the full extent of the law.

Similarly, the Terms and Conditions that are included in the packaging for the NET10
handsets provide, in pertinent part, as follows:

UNAUTHORIZED USAGE

The NET10 handset is sold exclusively for use with the NET10 Prepaid Wireless

Service. You agree not to tamper with or alter your NET10 or its software, enter

unauthorized PIN numbers, engage in any other unauthorized or illegal use of

your NET10 or the Service, or assist others in such acts, or export NET10

handsets outside of the United States. Improper, illegal or unauthorized use of

your NET10 may result in immediate discontinuance of Service. These acts

violate NET10’s rights and could violate state and federal laws. NET10 will

prosecute violators to the full extent of the law.

31.  The restrictions and limitations in the Terms and Conditions and on the packaging
are intended to restrict the use of TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones solely to TracFone’s wireless
virtual prepaid network.

32.  TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones may access TracFone’s wireless virtual prepaid
network only within the United States, the U.S. Virgin Islands, and Puerto Rico (the “Coverage
Area”).

33.  TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones cannot access TracFone’s network outside of

the Coverage Area unless the TracFone Prepaid Software is unlawfully removed or altered.
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DEFENDANTS’ MISCONDUCT

34.  TracFone has discovered that, although large quantities of its Phones are being
purchased at retailers throughout the United States, a significant number of these Phones are not
being activated for use on the TracFone network.

35. Instead, entities and individuals such as Defendants are purchasing and selling
TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones in bulk quantities for use outside of the TracFone network.
The Phones are taken out of their original packaging, shipped overseas, “unlocked” or
“reflashed,” and resold. Defendants’ actions are not for the sole purpose of lawfully connecting
to a wireless telephone communication network.

36.  The process of unlocking or reflashing TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones involves
circumventing the electronic protections installed in the handset, and then erasing, removing
and/or disabling the TracFone Prepaid Software.

37.  Once a TracFone Prepaid Phone has been unlocked or reflashed, it is no longer
operable within TracFone’s prepaid wireless virtual network, and could be further modified to
become operable on other cellular networks. Once this occurs, TracFone no longer has a
revenue source to recoup the invested subsidy on that Phone.

38.  Unless unlocked or reflashed, the TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones are
inoperable as wireless telecommunications devices outside the Coverage Area. The Coverage
Area is plainly disclosed in TracFone’s packaging and in the Terms and Conditions. There
would be no reason to ship TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones overseas unless they were intended
to be unlawfully unlocked or reflashed.

39.  Defendants are knowingly and willfully engaged in an enterprise that traffics in

and resells unlocked or reflashed TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones, or TracFone/NET10 Prepaid
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Phones that they know, or reasonably should know, will be subsequently unlocked or reflashed
and then resold under the Marks as new for a substantial profit.

40. Upon information and belief, Defendants currently conduct the Bulk Resale
Scheme out of the Sam’s $1.00 store located at 935 E. Irving Boulevard, Irving, Texas 75060
(“Sam’s Store”).

41.  To further the Bulk Resale Scheme, Defendants, along with others, conspire and
work in concert to circumvent retailers’ policies limiting the number of TracFone/NET10
Prepaid Phones an individual may purchase.

42.  Defendants purchase large quantities of TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones daily
from various Texas area retailers, including:

= Wal-Mart Supercenter Store #880 in Irving, Texas

= Wal-Mart Supercenter Store #807 in N. Richland Hills, Texas
=  Family Dollar #7154 in Forth Worth, Texas

® Family Dollar #7096 in Irving, Texas

» Wal-Mart Supercenter Store #5312 in Forth Worth, Texas

= Wal-Mart Supercenter Store #3274 in N. Richland Hills, Texas
= Wal-Mart Supercenter Store #5174 in Dallas, Texas

® Wal-Mart Supercenter Store #896 in Grand Praire, Texas

= Wal-Mart Supercenter Store #5416 in Arlington, Texas

» Wal-Mart Supercenter Store #1455 in Forth Worth, Texas

®  Wal-Mart Supercenter Store #1178 in Bedford, Texas

=  Wal-Mart Supercenter Store #284 in Mansfield, Texas

= Wal-Mart Supercenter Store #2649 in Irving, Texas

= Wal-Mart Supercenter Store #5080 in Hurst, Texas
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43.  Defendants then transport the Phones back to Sam’s Store where the Phones are
removed from their TracFone/NET10 packaging and the packaging is discarded in a dumpster
located directly behind Sam’s Store. Photographs of TracFone/NET10 clamshells recently found
in Sam’s Store’s dumpsters are attached hereto as Compeosite Exhibit C.

44.  Between December 29, 2007 and January 3, 2008, Defendants purchased at least
seventy (70) TracFone Phones and thirty-six (36) NET10 Phones from various Texas retailers.

45. Upon information and belief, Defendants and their co-conspirators are directly
and/or knowingly facilitating others who are reflashing or altering TracFone’s Prepaid Software
in the Phones, improperly repackaging the Phones under the Marks, and trafficking and reselling
the reflashed, counterfeit and repackaged Phones to end consumers or to co-conspirators who sell
the Phones to end consumers outside the Coverage Area for profit.

SUBSTANTIAL HARM CAUSED BY DEFENDANTS’ MISCONDUCT

46.  Defendants’ actions substantially harm TracFone by depriving TracFone of the
opportunity to recoup its losses on the sale of its TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones and to earn
profits by providing wireless service to legitimate TracFone consumers.

47.  Because the Defendants often remove the Phones from their original packaging
and/or ship the Phones outside the United States, they do not carry TracFone’s manufacturer’s
warranty. Accordingly, TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones differ materially from the genuine
TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones sold by authorized TracFone retailers, all of which carry a
manufacturer’s warranty.

48.  In addition, removing the Phones from the original packaging and altering the
software irreparably harms TracFone because it deprives TracFone of the means to control the

quality of its product.
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49.  The conduct of Defendants, their unknown co-conspirators, and others who
engage in the unlawful bulk purchasing, reflashing, and sale of reflashed and altered
TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones, has also resulted in a shortage of available TracFone/NET10
Prepaid Phones, thereby substantially harming TracFone and its relationship with retailers and
consumers because TracFone is not able to supply retailers with sufficient handsets to satisfy the
demand from legitimate consumers. As a result, TracFone is losing potential consumers to other
wireless competitors.

50.  Defendants’ actions substantially harm TracFone and consumers who ultimately
purchase TracFone handsets that have been improperly reflashed.  These reflashed
TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones will not work as intended. Consumers of these reflashed
phones are unable to access TracFone’s prepaid wireless service. Consumers of the reflashed
phones are misled about the source, sponsorship, and origin of their reflashed wireless phone.

51.  The process of reflashing or unlocking a TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phone voids
the manufacturer’s warranty on the device. In addition, the sale of a TracFone/NET10 Prepaid
Phone outside of the United States also voids the manufacturer’s warranty. Both consumers and
TracFone are harmed when a TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phone that has been altered or sold
outside of this country by Defendants or their co-conspirators is submitted for warranty repair.
Because the warranty is voided on reflashed Phones or Phones sold abroad, consumers who
purchase Phones from Defendants or their co-conspirators are unable to obtain warranty service
in the event they experience problems with their Phones. As a result, TracFone’s reputation
suffers further.

52.  Defendants’ conduct has also resulted in the dilution of TracFone’s trademarks,

substantial harm to TracFone’s business reputation and goodwill, and a greater likelihood of
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confusion, mistake, and deception about the source of origin of TracFone products unlawfully
sold by the Defendants and as to the relationship between TracFone and Defendants.
CIVIL PROCEEDINGS IN OTHER FEDERAL COURTS

53.  Federal courts have recognized that conduct similar or identical to Defendants’®
violates existing civil laws.

54.  TracFone and Nokia Corporation (“Nokia”) have filed various independent
lawsuits in the United States District Courts for the Southern District of Florida, the Middle
District of Florida, the Northern District of Texas, and the Southern District of Texas against
other defendants similarly engaged in the practice of defrauding legitimate consumers, TracFone
and Nokia, by bulk purchasing prepaid wireless telephones and reflashing, repackaging, and
reselling the counterfeit prepaid wireless phones for profit. TracFone and Nokia have obtained
Final Judgments and Permanent Injunctions in these cases; sample copies of some of these orders
are attached hereto as Compeosite Exhibit D.

COUNT ONE
BREACH OF CONTRACT

TracFone reasserts the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 54 above, as though
fully set forth herein.

55. By purchasing TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones, Defendants acknowledged and
agreed to the Terms and Conditions included with each Phone as conspicuously printed on the
package and as contained in the printed inserts packaged with the Phones.

56.  The Terms and Conditions constitute a valid binding contract between TracFone

and Defendants.

57.  TracFone has performed or tendered performance in accordance therewith.
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58.  Defendants have breached the Terms and Conditions by, inter alia, purchasing
TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones with the specific intent to reflash or unlock the phones or ship
the phones outside of the United States.

59.  TracFone has suffered damages as a result of Defendants’ breach of the Terms

and Conditions.

COUNT TWO
FEDERAL TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT

TracFone reasserts the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 54 above, as though
fully set forth herein.

60.  Defendants’ and/or their co-conspirator’s aforementioned conduct constitutes use
of the Marks without authorization in connection with their conspiracy to sell and offer for sale
reflashed and counterfeit TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones, which downstream customers will
discover are not capable for use with the TracFone prepaid wireless service.

61.  Defendants’ and/or their co-conspirator’s use of the Marks in connection with the
sale of reflashed and counterfeit TracFone/NET10 Phones has caused, and will further cause, a
likelihood of confusion, mistake, and deception about the source of origin of Defendants’
counterfeit products, and the relationship between TracFone and Defendants.

62.  Defendants’ and/or their co-conspirator’s unauthorized use of the Marks is likely
to continue in the future, all to the great and irreparable damage to the business, reputation, and
goodwill of TracFone.

63.  Defendants’ and/or their co-conspirator’s use and sale of the Marks in connection
with the reflashed and counterfeit TracFone/NET10 Phones, which are no longer capable of use
with the TracFone prepaid wireless service constitutes a misappropriation of TracFone’s

distinguishing and identifying Marks that were created as a result of effort and expense by
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TracFone over a long period of time. Defendants’ and/or their co-conspirator’s use of the Marks
evokes an immediate, favorable impression or association and constitutes a false representation
that the products and business of Defendants have some connection, association, or affiliation
with TracFone, and thus constitutes false designation of origin.

64.  Defendants, in committing the foregoing acts in commerce, have damaged, and
will continue to damage, TracFone and the reputation and goodwill of TracFone, and each has
unjustly enriched and will continue to unjustly enrich his or herself at the expense of TracFone.
TracFone is without an adequate remedy at law to redress such acts, and will be irreparably
damaged unless Defendants are enjoined from committing and continuing to commit such acts.

65.  Defendants’ aforesaid acts constitute willful infringement of TracFone’s federally
registered trademarks in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1114.

COUNT THREE
FEDERAL UNFAIR COMPETITION

TracFone reasserts the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 54 above, as though
fully set forth herein.

66.  Defendants’ conduct, described with more particularity in this Complaint,
constitutes unfair competition in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).

67.  TracFone has been damaged, or is likely to be damaged, by Defendants’ conduct.

COUNT FOUR
COMMON LAW UNFAIR COMPETITION

TracFone reasserts the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 54 above, as though

fully set forth herein.
68.  Defendants’ conduct in purchasing and inducing others to purchase the Phones,

disabling or removing, inducing others to disable or remove, and/or assisting others to disable or
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remove, the TracFone Prepaid Software and replacing it with other software, and reselling and/or
assisting others to resell the handsets as new for activation of other wireless networks constitutes
unfair competition, under the common law of the State of Texas.

69.  Defendants’ conduct in selling, inducing others to sell, and/or assisting others to
sell reflashed or unlocked Phones for the purpose of being reflashed or unlocked, which cannot
be activated on the TracFone prepaid wireless network, constitutes unfair competition under the
common law of the State of Texas. Defendants’ conduct complained of herein was intentional,
malicious, and willful.

70.  TracFone has suffered substantial damages as a result of Defendants’ unfair
competition.

COUNT FIVE
CONTRIBUTORY TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT

TracFone reasserts the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 54 above, as though
fully set forth herein.

71. By misappropriating and using the Marks in connection with the Bulk Resale
Scheme, Defendants knowingly aided and enabled distributors and/or sellers of its products to
market them to members of the general public in a way that infringes the Marks by placing in the
hands of distributors and/or sellers an instrument of consumer deception.

72. Defendants’ unlawful, unauthorized, and unlicensed sale of the reflashed or
unlocked TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones has thus contributed to the creation of express and
implied misrepresentations that the TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones, as sold by Defendants,
were created, authorized, or approved by TracFone, and may be used with TracFone’s prepaid

wireless service.
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73.  Upon information and belief, Defendants’ conduct has led to post-sale confusion
by causing consumers who purchase TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones altered by Defendants to
believe that they are purchasing handsets with software licensed or approved by TracFone.

74.  Defendants’ conduct constitutes contributory infringement in violation of the
Trademark Act. Defendants’ conduct is intentional, malicious, and willful.

75.  TracFone has suffered substantial damages as a result of Defendants’ contributory
infringement.

COUNT SIX
COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT OF THE PREPAID SOFTWARE

TracFone reasserts the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 54 above, as though
fully set forth herein.

76.  TracFone has the exclusive right to reproduce and prepare derivative works of its
federally copyrighted TracFone Prepaid Software pursuant to 17 U.S.C. § 106.

77.  Defendants’ and/or its co-conspirators’ actions in reflashing or otherwise
modifying the federally copyrighted TracFone Prepaid Software, without TracFone’s authority
or consent, creates an unauthorized derivative work of the TracFone Prepaid Software.

78.  Defendants’ and/or its co-conspirators’ actions in improperly reflashing the
federally copyrighted TracFone Prepaid Software, without TracFone’s authority or consent,
creates an unauthorized reproduction of the TracFone Prepaid Software.

79. Defendants know or should know their conduct constitutes copyright
infringement under Title 17 of the United States Code.

80.  Defendants’ actions have damaged and will continue to irreparably injure

TracFone unless Defendants’ conduct is enjoined by this Court.
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COUNT SEVEN
CIRCUMVENTION OF COPYRIGHTED SOFTWARE PROTECTION SYSTEM

TracFone reasserts the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 54 above, as though
fully set forth herein.

81.  The TracFone Prepaid Software contains technological measures that in the
ordinary course of the measures’ operation require the application of information, or a process or
a treatment, with TracFone’s authority, to gain access to the proprietary software, as set forth in
17 U.S.C. § 1201.

82.  The TracFone Prepaid Software contains technological measures that effectively
control access to the proprietary software.

83.  TracFone did not give Defendants or their co-conspirators authority to reflash,
unlock, or otherwise to avoid, bypass, remove, disable, deactivate, or impair the technological
measures for effectively controlling access to and operation of the TracFone Prepaid Software.

84.  TracFone did not grant Defendants or their co-conspirators the authority to
circumvent the technological measures for effectively controlling access to the TracFone Prepaid
Software.

85.  Defendants acted, and/or knowingly engaged in a conspiracy, to avoid, bypass,
remove, disable, deactivate, or impair a technological measure for effectively controlling access
to the proprietary software without TracFone’s authority.

86.  Defendants engaged in this misconduct for the purpose of reselling the altered
devices for a profit, and not for the sole purpose of lawfully connecting to a wireless telephone
communication network.

87.  Defendants acted to, and/or knowingly engaged in a conspiracy designed to,

circumvent a technological measure that effectively controls access to the TracFone Prepaid
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Software that is protected under title 17 of the United States Code, and thereby violated 17
U.S.C. § 1201.

88.  Defendants’ conduct has caused and, unless restrained, will continue to cause
TracFone severe, immediate, and irreparable injury and damages for which TracFone has no
adequate remedy at law. TracFone is entitled to injunctive relief restraining such conduct, an
award of damages, including punitive damages, as well as other equitable and legal relief.

COUNT EIGHT
TRAFFICKING IN CIRCUMVENTION TECHNOLOGY

TracFone reasserts the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 54 above, as though
fully set forth herein.

89.  Defendants are, or are knowingly facilitating co-conspirators who are, in
possession of certain instrumentalities that avoid, bypass, remove, disable, deactivate, or
otherwise impair the technological measures within the TracFone Prepaid Software that
effectively control access to the proprietary TracFone Prepaid Software.

90.  Defendants are, or are knowingly facilitating co-conspirators who are, trafficking
in the service of circumventing the technological measures that protect the TracFone Prepaid
Software from alteration or modification.

91.  Individuals purchasing altered phones from Defendants or their co-conspirators
purchase both the TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phone and the service of circumventing the
technological measures that protect the TracFone Prepaid Software from alteration or
modification provided by Defendants or their co-conspirators.

92.  Accordingly, Defendants are, or are knowingly facilitating co-conspirators who

are, trafficking in the service of circumventing TracFone’s technological measures that
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effectively control access to TracFone’s Prepaid Software by offering to the public its alteration
service for a fee.

93.  The service of altering the TracFone Prepaid Software in TracFone/NET10
Prepaid Phones is primarily designed or produced for the purpose of circumventing TracFone’s
technological measures that effectively control access to TracFone’s Prepaid Software that is
protected under title 17 of the United States Code.

94.  Accordingly, Defendants have violated, and continue to violate, Section 1201 of
the Copyright Act and, as a result, TracFone has been irreparably injured and will continue to be
irreparably injured unless the Defendants’ violating activities are enjoined by this Court.

95.  The service of altering the TracFone Prepaid Software has, at most, only a limited
commercially significant purpose or use other than circumventing TracFone’s technological
measures that effectively control access to TracFone’s Prepaid Software that is protected under
title 17 of the United States Code.

96. Therefore, Defendants have violated, and continue to violate, Section 1201 of the
Copyright Act and, as a result, TracFone has been irreparably injured and will continue to be
irreparably injured unless the Defendants’ violating activities are enjoined by this Court.

COUNT NINE
DILUTION OF TRACFONE’S MARKS

TracFone reasserts the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 54 above, as though
fully set forth herein.

97.  TracFone is in the business of, and has earned a reputation for, providing its
customers with high quality prepaid wireless telephone service.

98. The TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones that Defendants and/or their co-

conspirators reflashed and resold as new are branded with TracFone’s Marks.
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99.  Defendants’ conduct has resulted in substantial harm to TracFone as more
particularly set forth above.

100. Defendants’ conduct in selling, or knowingly facilitating the sale of, altered
Phones has injured TracFone’s business reputation and diluted the distinctive quality of its
Marks, trade names and/or labels in violation of Tex. Code Ann. § 16.29, and will continue to do
so unless enjoined.

101.  TracFone requests permanent injunctive relief against Defendants pursuant to
Tex. Code Ann. § 16.29.

COUNT TEN
CIVIL CONSPIRACY

TracFone reasserts the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 54 above, as though
fully set forth herein.

102.  An agreement and conspiracy existed and continues to exist between and among
the Defendants and other co-conspirators, to unlawfully bulk purchase, traffic in and resell
unlawfully reflashed and counterfeit TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones under the Marks.

103. Defendants each knowingly agreed to engage, and did engage, in one or more
overt acts in furtherance of the conspiracy as set forth with more particularity in this complaint.

104. TracFone has been proximately damaged by the conspiracy and Defendants’
actions in furtherance of the conspiracy.

COUNT ELEVEN
UNJUST ENRICHMENT

TracFone reasserts the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 54 above, as though

fully set forth herein.
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105. By bulk purchasing the TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones below the
manufacturers’ cost of the phones, Defendants obtained benefits from TracFone that have
resulted in significant financial benefits to Defendants through their resale of the bulk purchased
TracFone/NET10 Prepaid Phones.

106. Defendants acquired the benefits voluntarily and with full knowledge.

107. Defendants have retained the benefits under such circumstances that make it
unjust and inequitable for Defendants to retain the benefits without paying TracFone the value of
the benefits Defendants’ acquired.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury on all triable issues.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc., a Delaware corporation, respectfully
requests that this Court enter final judgment and permanent injunctive relief in favor of TracFone
and against Defendants Shazia & Noushad Corporation d/b/a Sam’s $1.00, Noushad N. Mian,
individually and d/b/a Sam’s $1.00, and Shazia A. Mian, individually and d/b/a Sam’s $1.00, as
follows:

(a) awarding TracFone its compensatory, consequential, statutory, special, treble, and
punitive damages including, without limitation, its lost profits, loss of goodwill and damage to its
reputation, as provided by law, together with pre and post judgment interest;

(b) awarding TracFone its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of this action;

(c) awarding TracFone permanent injunctive relief against Defendants enjoining

Defendants from engaging in the unlawful practices described in this complaint;
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(d) requiring Defendants, pursuant to the Lanham Act, to deliver their entire inventory

of phones bearing or infringing any of the Marks or a confusingly similar copy thereof, to

TracFone; and,

(e) granting such further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

DATED this 15th day of January, 2008.

By:/s/ April R. Terry
April R. Terry
Texas Bar Number 00794248
LOCKE LORD BISSELL & LIDDELL, LLP
2200 Ross Avenue, Suite 2200
Dallas, TX 75201
Telephone: (214) 740-8739
Facsimile: (214) 740-8800
E-Mail: aterry@lockelord.com

and

James B. Baldinger, Trial Counsel

Florida Bar Number 869899

Maria C. Montenegro -

Florida Bar Number 996084

(admission pro hac vice to be filed)

Christopher M. Paolini

Florida Bar Number 669199

(admission pending)

CARLTON FIELDS, P.A.

P.O. Box 150

West Palm Beach, FL 33402-0150

Telephone: 561.659.7070

Facsimile: 561.659.7368

Email: jbaldinger@carltonfields.com
cpaolini@carltonfields.com
mmontenegro@carltonfields.com

Attorneys for TracFone Wireless, Inc.
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COMPOSITY EXHIBIT “A”




Int. CL: 35
Prior U.S. Cls.: 100, 101 and 102

Reg. No. 3,222,623

United States Patent and Trademark Office  Registered Mar. 27, 2007

SERVICE MARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

TRACF@NE

nationwide prepaid wireless

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC. (FLORIDA COR-
PORATION)

8390 NW 25 ST
MIAMI, FL 33122

FOR: DISTRIBUTORSHIP SERVICES FEATUR-
ING CELLULAR TELEPHONES, PREPAID AIR
TIME CELLULAR TELEPHONE AND PREPAID
AIR TIME DEBIT CARDS, AND SOFTWARE FOR
CONTROLLING AND MONITORING PREPAID
AIR TIME CELLULAR SERVICE, IN CLASS 35
(U.S. CLS. 100, 101 AND 102).

FIRST USE 12-31-2005, IN COMMERCE 12-31-2005.

OWNER OF U.S. REG. NOS. 2114,692, 2,761,017
AND OTHERS.

NO CLAIM IS MADE TO THE EXCLUSIVE
RIGHT TO USE "NATIONWIDE PREPAID WIRE-
LESS", APART FROM THE MARK AS SHOWN.

THE MARK CONSISTS OF THE WORDS TRAC-
FONE NATIONWIDE PREPAID ‘WIRELESS WITH

THE O IN TRACFONE APPEARING AS A SPIRA-
CLE.

SER. NO. 78-892.046, FILED 5-24-2006.

ARETHA SOMERVILLE, EXAMINING ATTORNEY




Int. Cl: 9
Prior U.S. Cls.: 21, 23, 26, 36 and 38

United States Patent and Trademark Office

Reg. No. 3,224,929
Registered Apr. 3, 2007

TRADEMARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

TRACF@ONE

nationwide prepaid wireless

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC. (FLORIDA COR-
PORATION)

8390 NW 25 ST

MIAML, FL 33122

FOR: ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS EQUIP-
MENT, NAMELY, CELLULAR TELEPHONES; PRE-
PAID AIR TIME CELLULAR TELEPHONES;

CELLULAR TELEPHONE ACCESSORIES, NAME-

LY, BATTERY CHARGERS, STANDS, ANTENNAE,
HEADSET KITS COMPRISED OF HANDS FREE
ELECTRONIC EARPIECE WITH MICROPHONE
AND HOLSTER, HANDS FREE HEADSETS, CASES
WITH FLAPS, POWER ADAPTERS, BATTERIES,
CARRY SLEEVES, FACE PLATES, BELT CLIPS,
HOLSTERS, MOUNTING ATTACHMENTS, IN
CLASS 9 (US. CLS. 21, 23, 26, 36 AND 38).

FIRST USE 12-31-2005; IN COMMERCE 12-31-2005.

OWNER OF US. REG. NOS. 2,114,692, 2,761,017
AND OTHERS.

NO CLAIM IS MADE TO THE EXCLUSIVE
RIGHT TO USE "NATIONWIDE PREPAID WIRE-
LESS", APART FROM THE MARK AS SHOWN.

THE MARK CONSISTS OF THE WORDS TRAC-
FONE NATIONWIDE PREPAID WIRELESS WITH
THE O IN TRACFONE APPEARING AS A SPIRA-
CLE

SER. NO. 78-892,025, FILED 5-24-2006.

ARETHA SOMERVILLE, EXAMINING ATTORNEY




Int. Cls.: 9, 35 and 38

Prior US. Cls.: 21, 23, 26, 36, 38, 100, 101, 102 and 104

United States Patent and Trademark Office

Reg. No. 2,761,017
Registered Sep. 9, 2003

SERVICE MARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

TTOCF@NE

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC. (FLORIDA COR-
PORATION)

8390 NW 25TH STREET
MIAMI FL 33122

FOR: ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS EQUIP-
MENT, NAMELY, CELLULAR TELEPHONES; PRE-
PAID AIR TIME CELLULAR TELEPHONES;
CELLULAR TELEPHONE ACCESSORIES, NAME-
LY, BATTERY CHARGERS, STANDS, ANTENNAE,
HEADSET KITS COMPRISED OF HANDS FREE
ELECTRONIC EARPIECE WITH MICROPHONE
AND HOLSTER,; HANDS FREE HEADSETS, CASES
WITH FLAPS, POWER ADAPTERS, BATTERIES,
CARRY SLEEVES, FACE PLATES, BELT CLIPS,
HOLSTERS, MOUNTING ATTACHMENTS, N
CLASS 9 (US. CLS. 21, 23, 26, 36 AND 38).

FIRST USE 12-0-2000; IN COMMERCE 12-0-2000.

FOR: ON-LINE RETAIL STORE SERVICES FEA-
TURING CELLULAR TELEFPHONES, PRE-PAID

WIRELESS AIR TIME CARDS, CELLULAR TELE-
PHONE ACCESSORIES AND WIRELESS SERVICES,
IN CLASS 35 (U.S. CLS. 100, 101 AND 102).

FIRST USE 12-0-2000; IN COMMERCE 12-0-2000.

FOR: PROVIDING CELLULAR TELEPHONE
SERVICES AND PROYVIDING MONITORING AND
CONTROL SERVICES FOR USE IN-CONJUNCTION
WITH PREPAID AIR TIME CELLULAR PHONES
AND DEBIT CARDS, IN CLASS 38 (U.S. CLS. 100, 10t
AND 104). -

FIRST USE 12-0-2000; IN COMMERCE 12-0-2000.
OWNER OF US. REG. NO. 2,114,692
SER_ NO. 76-396,136, FILED 4-15-2002.

CATHERINE FAINT, EXAMINING ATIORNEY




Int. Cls.: 9, 38, and 42

Prior U.S. Cls.: 21, 23, 26, 36, 38, 100, 101, and

104

United States Patent and Trademark Office

Reg. No. 2,114,692
Registered Nov. 18, 1997

TRADEMARK
SERVICE MARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

TRACFONE

TOPP, INC. (FLORIDA CORPORATION)
8280 N.W. 27TH STREET
SUTTE 506

MIAMI, FL 33122

FOR: ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS
EQUIPMENT, NAMELY, CELLULAR TELE-
PHONES, PREPAID AIRTIME CELLULAR
TELEPHONES AND CELLULAR TELEPHONE
ACCESSORIES, NAMELY, PREPAID AIRTIME
DEBIT CARDS, BATIERY CHARGERS,
STANDS, ANTENNAE, VOICE AMPLIFIERS
AND MICROPHONES; COMPUTER PRO-
GRAMS FOR USE IN CONTROLLING AND
MONITORING PREPAID AIRTIME CELLULAR
TELEPHONE SERVICE, IN CLASS 9 (US. CLS.
21, 23, 26, 36 AND 38).

FIRST USE 6-30-199§
6-30-1996.

FOR: PROVIDING CELLULAR TELEPHONE
SERVICES AND PROVIDING MONITORING

IN COMMERCE

AND CONTROL SERVICES FOR USE IN CON-
JUNCTION WITH PREPAID AIRTIME CELLU-
LAR PHONES AND DEBIT CARDS, IN CLASS
38 (U.S. CLS. 100, 101 AND 104).

FIRST USE 6-30-1996; IN COMMERCE
6~30-1996.
FOR: WHOLESALE DISTRIBUTORSHIP

FEATURING OF CELLULAR TELEPHONES,
PREPAID AIRTIME CELLULAR TELEPHONES
AND PREPAID AIRTIME DEBIT CARDS, AND
SOFTWARE FOR CONTROLLING AND MONI-
TORING PREPAID AIRTIME CELLULAR
SERVICE, IN CLASS 42 (US. CLS. 100 AND
101).

F)'IRST USE 6-30-1996;
6-30-1996.

IN COMMERCE

SN 75-074,390, FILED 3-18-1996.

DAVID NICHOLSON, EXAMINING ATTOR-
NEY




Int. Cls.: 36 and 38
Prior U.S. Cls.: 100, 101, 102, and 104

United States Patent and Trademark Office

Reg. No. 3,118,250
Registered July 18, 2006

SERVICE MARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

NET 10

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC. (FLORIDA COR-
PORATION)

8390 N'W 25TH STREET

MIAMI, FL 33122

FOR: MONITORING THE USE OF DEBIT CARDS,
IN CLASS 36 (U.S. CLS. 100, 101 AND 102).

FIRST USE 3-1-2005; IN COMMERCE 3-1-2005.

FOR: PROVIDING MONITORING AND CON-
TROL SERVICES FOR USE IN CONJUNCTION
WITH PREPAID AIR TIME CELLULAR AND MO-

RILE PHONES, IN CLASS 38 (US. CLS. 100, 101 AND
109,

FIRST USE 3-1-2005, IN COMMERCE 3-1-2005.

THE MARX CONSISTS OF STANDARD CHAR-
ACTERS WITHOUT CLAIM TO ANY PARTICULAR
FONT, STYLE, SIZE, OR COLOR.

SN 78-509,584, FILED 11-2-2004.
HOWARD B. LEVINE, EXAMINING ATTORNEY




Int. ClL: 35
Prior U.S. Cls.: 100, 101 and 102

Reg. No. 3,251,389

United States Patent and Trademark Office  Registered June 12, 2007

SERVICE MARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

NET IO

Vi 92 WIS AT SHN.

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC. (FLORIDA COR-
PORATION)

8390 NW 25 ST
MIAMI, FL 33122

FOR: DISTRIBUTORSHIP SERVICES FEATUR-
ING CELLULAR TELEPHONES, PREPAID AIR
TIME CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND PREPAID
AIR TIME DEBIT CARDS, AND SOFTWARE FOR
CONTROLLING AND MONITORING PREPAID

AIR TIME CELLULAR SERVICE, IN CLASS 35

o uUs. CLS. 100, 101 AND 102).

FIRST USE 12-31-2005; IN COMMERCE 12-31-2005.
OWNER OF U.S. REG. NO. 3,118.250.

SER. NO. 78-918,070, FILED 6-27-2006.

KAPIL BHANOT, EXAMINING ATTORNEY




Int. CL: 38
Prior U.S. Cls.z 100, 101 and 104

United States Patent and Trademark Office

Reg. No. 3,255,754
Registered June 26, 2007

SERVICE MARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

TRACEONE WIRELESS, INC. (FLORIDA COR-
PORATION)

8390 NW 25 ST
MIAMI, FL 33122

FOR: CELLULAR TELEPHONE COMMUNICA-
TiONS SERVICES PROVIDED V1A PREPAID AIR
TDME CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND PREPAID
AIR TIME CELLULAR G CARD SERVICES,

CALLIN
IN CLASS 38 (U.S. CLS. 100, 101 AND 104).

FIRST USE 12-31-2005; N COMMERCE 12-31-2005.
OWNER OF US. REG. NO. 3,118,250
SER. NO. 78-918,073, FILED 6-27-2006.

KAPIL BHANOT, EXAMINING ATTORNEY




Int. CL: 9
Prior U.S. Cls.: 21, 23, 26, 36 and 38

Reg. No. 3,253,506

United States Patent and Trademark Office  Registered Juoe 19, 2007

TRADEMARK
PRINCIPAL REGISTER

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC. (FLORIDA COR-
PORATION)
8390 NW 25 ST

MIAMI, FL 33122

FOR: ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS EQUIP-
MENT, NAMELY, CELLULAR TELEPHONES; PRE-
PAID AIR TIME CELLULAR TELEPHONES;
CELLULAR TELEPHOKE ACCESSORIES, NAME-
LY, TELEPHONE BATTERY CHARGERS, TELE-
PHONE BATTERY CHARGER STANDS,
TELEPHONE ANTENNAE, HEADSET XITS COM-
PRISED OF HANDS FREE ELECTRONIC EAR-
PIECE WITH MICROPHONE AND HOLSTER
SPECIALLY ADAPTED FOR CELLPHONES,
HANDS FREE HEADSETS COMPRISING HEAD-
PHONES AND A MICROPHONE, CASES WITH
FLAPS SPECIALLY ADAPTED FOR CELLPHONES,
POWER ADAPTERS, BATTERIES, CARRY SLEEVES
SPECIALLY ADAPTED FOR CELLPHONES, DEC-

i 5 ke 5 AL SRS

ORATIVE CELLPHONE FACE PLATES, BELT
CLIPS, HOLSTERS, AND MOUNTING ATTACH-
MENTS SPECIALLY ADAPTED FOR CARRYING
CELLPHONES , IN CLASS 9 (US. CLS. 21, 23, 26, 36
AND 38).

FIRST USE 12-31-2005; IN COMMERCE 12-31-2005.
OWNER OF US. REG. NO. 3,118,250.

THE MARK CONSISTS OF THE WORDS NET10
WITH TWO ALIGNED TRIANGLES EMANATING
FROM THE NUMBER »i" WITH THE WORDS PAY
AS YOU GO MADE SIMPLE UNDERNEATH.

SER. NO. 78-918,088, FILED 6-27-2006.

JESSICA A. POWERS, EXAMINING ATTORNEY
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
ORLANDO DIVISION

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC..

Plaintiff.
CASE NO.: 6:06-CV-01257-ORL-18-UAM

Vs.

CLINTON RIEDEMAN d/b/a

LARRY'S CELL, LAWRENCE RIEDEMAN
d/b/a LARRY’S CELL, RIEDCOR. INC. d/b/a
LARRY'S CELL, and ROBIN KETCHAM
d/b/aLARRY'S CELL,

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT INJUNCTION
AGAINST DEFENDANT RIEDCOR, INC.

Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc. (“TracFone™), brought the above-captioned lawsuit
against Defendant, Riedcor, Inc. d/b/a Larry’s Cell, (“Defendant”). asserting that Defendant was
engaged in an unlawful enterprise that involves the acquisition, sale and counterfeiting of large
quantities of TracFone: prepaid wireless telephones (“TracFone Prepaid Phones” or “Phones™)
purchased from various retail outlets such as Wal-Mart, Target and Sam's Club, the solicitation
and payment of others to bulk purchase TracFone Prepaid Phones for Defendant’s benefit.
computer hacking and erasing or otherwise disabling the prepaid software installed in the
TracFone Prepaid Phones essential for consumers to access TracFone's prepaid wireless
network, or reselling the Phones 1o others who disable the software, and ultimately sell the
counterfeit Phones as new under incontestable TmcFone wrademarks for the unauthorized use

outside of the TracFone prepaid wireless system.

MIA#26352722
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TracFone asserted claims against the Defendant for circumvention of technological
measures that control access to proprietary sofiware and trafficking in services tbatl circumvent
technological measures protecting proprietary software under 17 US.C. § 1201, et. seg. as 2
violation of the Digital Millennium Copyright Act (“DMCA"), federal trademark infringement
and unfair competition under the Trademark Act of 1946, as amended, 15 US.C. § 1051, et. seg.,
tortious interference with business relationships and prospective advantages business
relationships between TracFone and its manufacturers. unfair competition and deceptive trade

practices under § 501.204, Fla. Stat. and injury to business reputation and dilution of marks

under § 495.151, Fla. Stat. Accordingly, itis hereby,
ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that:

1. This Court has jurisdiction over all the parties and all of the claims set forth in
TracFone's pleadings.

2. The Court finds that TracFone owns all right, title, and interest in and to
Incontestable United States Trademark Registration No. 2.1 14.692. issued November 18, 1997,
for TracFone and Incontestable United States Trademark Registraion No. 2,71,017, issued
September 9, 2003, for TracFone (the “TracFone Trademarks™). The TracFone Trademarks are
valid, incontestable, distinctive, protectable, famous, have acquired secondary meaning and are
associated exclusively with TracFone. |

3. The Court finds that the Defendant has violated the following statutes: 17 U.S.C.
§ 1201 (circumvention of technological measures that control access to proprietary software
under the DMCA and trafficking in services that circumvent technological measures protecting
copyrighted software), 15 US.C. § 1114 (wademark infringement), 15 US.C. § 1125 (unfair

competition), §§ 501.204 and 501.211, Fla. Stat. (unfair competition, deceptive trade practices

MIAX26352722
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and false advertising) and § 495.151, Fla. Stat. (injury to business reputation and dilution of
tredemarks). The Court further finds that Defendant’s conduct, alleged in the complainr.
constitutes tortuous interference with TracFone's advantageous business relationship and bas
caused substantial harm o TracFone, and will continue to cause substantial harm to TracFonc_
unless enjoined.

4, On November 27, 2006, the Librarian of Congress, upon the rpcommcndaﬁon of
the Register of Copyrights, issued a Final Rule setting forth six (6) classes of copyrighted works
that are exempt from the provisions of the DMCA, including:

Computer programs in the form of firmware that enable wireless telephone

handsets to connect to a wireless telephone communication network, when

circumvention is accomplished for the sole purpose of jawfully connecting to a
wireless telephone communication network.

71 Fed. Reg. 68472 (Nov. 27, 2006) (amending 37 C.F.R. § 201.40(b)). The Court ﬁ& that this
new exemption does not absolve the Defendant of lial;ility for his violations of the DMCA as
allcgcd in Counts I through III of TracFone's complaint. because the Defendant’s conduct as
alleged in this case docs not come within the scope of the new exemption. The Defendant’s
purchase and resale of the TracFone handsets was for the purpose of rcscllix-ug those handsets for
a profit, and not “for the s;olc purpose of lawfully connecting to a wircless telephone
communication network.” Because the exemption does not apply to the conduct alleged in this
case. there is no need for the Court to address the validity of the exemption or the circumstances
surrounding its enactmenl.

5. TracFone has suffered damages. including loss of goodwill and damage t0 its

reputation, as a result of the Defendant's conduct. TracFone is entitled to injunctive relief and

damages on the claims set forth in the complaint

MUAN26352722
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6. Final judgment is hereby entered against the Defendant, Riedcor, Inc., and in
favor of the Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc., on all of the claims set forth in TracFone's
. complzint Plaimiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc, a Florida corporation, 8390 NW 25® Street,

Miami, FL 33122, shall recover from Defendant, Riedcor, Inc.. 2 Florida corporation, 1722 West

Acre Drive, St. Cloud, Florida 34769, the sum of TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000.00),
plus costs in the sum of one thousand two bumdred dollars (31,200.00). which shall bear interest
at the legal rate, for which let execution issue.

1. Defendant, Riedcor. Inc, and each and 2ll of its representatives, agents,
employees, independent contractors, relatives, associates, servants and any and all persons and
entities in active concu’i and participation with Riedcor, Inc. who receive notice of -this order
chall be and hereby are PERMANENTLY ENJOINED from:

a. purchasing and/or selling any wigeless mobile phone that they know or sbould

know bears any TracFone Trademark, any other trademark owned or used by

TracFone, or any other model of wireless mobile phone sold or marketed by

TracFone (“TracFone Handsets™). Specifically, the Defendant is enjoined from

purchasing and/or selling all models of TracFone Handsets currently offered for

sale by TracFone, or that may be offered for sale in the future, es listed and

updated from  time o  time on  TracFone's website,
http:/ltracfone.com/activation _pick_brand.jsp, including without limitation the

following TracFone cellular handsets:

Motorola W370 Motorola C155 Nokia 1112
Motorola C261 Motorola C343 Nokia 1600
Motorola C139 Nokia 2126 Nokia 2285
Motorola V176 Nokia 21261 LG 3280
Motorola V170 Nokia 2600 LG CG225
Motorola V171 Nokia 1100 1.G 1500

. MILAS26352722
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b. reflashing and/or unlocking of any TracFone Handset;

c. accessing, altering. cmﬁg tamperipg with, deleting or otherwise disabling
TracFone's proprietary prepaid cellular software contained within any and all
models of TracFone Handsets;

d facilitating or in any way assisting other persons or entities who Defendant knows
or should know are engaged in reflashing and/or unlocking TracFone Handsets
and/or hacking, altering, erasing, tampering with, dcl;ting or otherwise disébling '
the software installed in TracFone Handsets:

¢. facilitating or in any way assisting other persons or entities who Defendant knows
or should know are engaged in any of the acts prohibited under this permanent
injunction including. without limitation, the buying and/or selling of unlocked
TracFone Handsets; and

f knowingly using the TracFone Trademarks or any other trademark owned or used
by TracFone, or that is likely to cause confusion with TracFone’s Trademarks.
without Tmcfone's prior written authorization.

8. The last known address of Defepdant Riedcor. Inc. is 1722 West Acre Drive, St.

Cloud. Florida 34769.

9. The address of Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc., is 8390 NW 25™ Street, Miami.
FL 33122

10.  Defendant Riedeor, Inc. and TracFone waive their rigﬁt to appeal from the entry
of this Final Judgment

11.  The Court retains jurisdiction over this matter and the parties to this action in

order to punish any violation of the terms of this Permanent Injunction by 2 finding of contempt

MLAF26352722
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and a payment of damages 10 TracFone Wireless, Inc. in an amount of not less than $5,000 for

each TracFone Handset that Defendant is found to have purchased, sold, or unlocked in violation

of this injunction.
12.  The prevailing party in any proceeding to enforee compliance with the terms of

this Permanent Injunction shall be entitled to an award of its attomeys’ fees and costs.

13.  This case remains pending against the other Defendants named in TracFone's

pleadings. The Court finds that there is no just reason for delay of the entry of judgment against

Defendant, Riedeor. Inc., and therefore directs the Clerk to enter Judgment as set forth herein

See Fed. R. Civ. P. 54(b).’
DONE AND ORDERED in Oriando, Florida, this _é day of é?! , 2007.

The Honorable G. Kendall Sharp
United §tates District Judge

Copies furnished to:

James B. Baldinger, Counsel for TracFone Wireless

Jeffrey Blau, Counsel for Defendant Robin Ketcham
Frank Killgore, Jr. and Alyson Innes, Counsel for Defendants Clinton Riedeman. Lawrence

Riedeman and Reidcor. Inc.

MILAX26352722
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: 07-21243-CIV XKING

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC,, 2
Florida corporation,

Plaintiff,
vs.

GASBOY TEXAS, INC., 2 Texas corporation,
OOZI ENTERPRISES, INC,, 2 Texas
corporation, NOORUDDIN SULTAN ALl
a/k/a BOB All, individually,

SHAENAWAZ

ALl
individually, JOHN DOE NOS. 1 through
20,

individually,

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT INJUN CTION

Plaintiff, TracFone Wircless, Inc. ("TracFonc;'), brought the above-captioned
lawlsuit against Defendants, GasBoy Texas, Inc., 2 Texas corporation (“GasBoy™), »
Nooruddin Sultan Ali 2/k/a Bob Ali, individually (“Bob Ali"), and Shahpawaz Ali,
individually (*Shahnawaz Ali") (collectively “Defendants’), asserting that Defendants are
engaged in an unlawful enterprise involving the acquisition, sale and counterfeiting of
large quantities of TracFone prepaid wircless telephones (“TracFone Prepaid Phones™ or
“Phones”) that causes substantial and irreparable harm to TracFone (the “Bulk Resale

Venture™).

TracFone asserts that Defendants perpetrate the Bulk Resale Venture by acquiring

bulk quantities of TracFone Prepaid Phones from retail stores such as Wal-Mart, Target




e
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or Sam’s Club, and by soliciting others to purchase TracFone Prepaid Phones in bulk for

the benefit of Defendants. TracFone asserts that Defendants acquire the TracFone
Prepaid Phones with the astual or constructive inowledge and intent that the Phones will
not be activated for use on the TracFone prepaid wireless network and that the Pbones
will be computer-hacked. The purpose of this hacking, known as “reflashing” or
“yniocking,” is to erase, FEMOVE and/or disable TracFone's éopyﬁgbted and proprietary
software installed in the Phones (*TracFone Proprietary Software™), which enzbles the
use of the TracFone Prepaid Phones exclusively on TracFone's prepaid wireless system.
TracFone asserts that the reflashed Phones are then trafficked and resold overseas, at 2
premium, as new under TracFone’s trademarks for unauthorized use outside of the
TracFone prepaid wireless system.

TracFone Prepaid Phones are sold subject to terms and conditions (“Terms and
Conditions™) which conspicuously restrict and limit the salc and use of TracFone Prepaid
Phones. These Terms and Conditions are set forth in printed inserts that are included in
the packaging with every TracFone Phone, and are also available to the public on |
TracFone's website. The Terms and Conditions are also referenced in printed warnings
that are placed on the outside of the retail packaging of the Phones. The Terms and
Conditions and language on the packaging constitute 2 valid binding contract.

Pursuant to the Terms and Conditions and the language on the packaging,

purchasers of TracFone Prepaid Phones agree: (2) to use their Phones only in conjunction

with TracFone’s prepaid wircless service, (b) not to tamper with or alter TracFone

Prepaid Phones or the Phones’ software, enter unauthorized PIN numbers in the Phones,

engage in any other unauthorized or illegal use of the Phones or the TracFone service, or
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assist others in such acts, and () not to export any TracFone Prcpzid Phones outside of
the United States.

As a result of the Bulk Resale Venfure, TracFone has asserted claims against
Defendants for breach of contract; federal trademark infringement under 15 US.C. §
1114; copyright infringement under Title 17 of the United States Code; circumvention of
technological measures that control access to proprictary software and trafficking in
services that circurnvent t_echnological measures protecting proprietary software under 17
US.C. § 1201, et. seq. as a violation of the Digital Millennium Copyrigﬁt Act
(“DMCA"); unfair competition under the Trademark Act of 1946, as amended, 15 US.C.
§ 1051, et. seq.; tortions interference with business relationships and prospective
advantages business relationships between TracFone and its manufacturers; unfair
competition and false advertising under Fla. Stat. § 501.204; harm to goodwill and
business reputation under Fla. Stat. § 495.151; civil conspiracy; and unjust enrichment.
The Court, having reviewed the @mplﬁnt and file and being otherwise duly advised in
the premises, it is hercby -

ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that:

1. This Court has jurisdiction over all the parties and all of the claims set forth in

TracFone's Complaint.

2. The Court finds that TracFone owns all right, title, and interest in and to
Incontestable United States Trademark Registration No. 2,1 14,692, issued November 18,
1997, for TracFone, United States Trademark Registration No. 2,761,017, issued
September 9, 2003, for TracFone and ﬁﬂtcd States Trademark Registration No.

3,118,250 for Net 10, issued Tuly 18,2006 (collectively the

“Registered TracFone
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Trademarks™). The Registered TracFone Trademarks are valid, distinctive, protectable,

farnons, have acquired secondary meaning and
The Court finds that the

incontestable. The Court forther finds that TracFone holds 2 valid and enforceable

PRS-

copyright on the TracFone Proprietary Software.

3. The Court finds that the Terms

packaging consututc 2 valid binding contract enforceable against D

finds that (a) facilitating others to use TracFone Prepaid Phones in conjunction thh

service providers other than TracFone, (b) tampering with or altering TracFone Prepaid
Phones or the Phones’ software,

u:poscs of unlocking or reflashing the Phones, or facili
(c) exporting TracFone Prep
constitute independent breaches of contract for whi

4. The Court

violate the following statutes: 15US.C.§11

are associated exclusively with TracFone.

trademark registered under Registration No. 2,114,692 1s

and Conditions and tbe language on the

efendants. The Court

entering unauthorized PIN numbers in the Phones for
tating others in such acts, and/ﬁr
aid Phones outside of the United States, respectively,

ch TracFone is entitled to relief.
finds that the conduct alleged in the complaint, if proven would

14 (trademark infringement); copyright

infringement under Title-17 of the United States Code; 17US.C. § 1201 (circurnvention

of technological

and trafficking in services that circumvent technological measures
software); 15 US.C. § 1125 (unfair competition);
advertising under Fla. Stat. § 501.204; harm to goodwill and
Fla. Stat. § 495.151. The Court
proven, would constitute tortious interference with TracF:

one's advantageous business

relationship, civil conspiracy,

measures that control access to proprietary software under the DMCA

protecting copyrighted
and unfair competition and false
business reputation under

further finds that the conduct alleged in the complaint, if

and unjust enrichment, and has caused substantial and
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jrreparable harm to TracFone, and would continue to cause substanﬁél and irreparable

harm to TracFone unless enjoined.

5. On November 27, 2006, the Librarian of Congress, upon, the recommendation
of the Register of Copyrights, jssued a Final Rule setting forth'six (6) classcs of
copyrighted works that are excmpt from the provisions of the DMCA, including:

Cormputer programs in the form of firmware that enable wireless telephone

handsets o connectio 2 wireless telephone comnmunication network, when

circumvention is accomplished for the sole purpose of lawfully connecting
to a wireless telephone comm ication network.

71 Fed. Reg, 68472 (Nov. 27, 2006) (amending 37 CFR-§ 201.40(b)). The Court finds
that this new exemption does not absolve the Defendants of liability for their violations of
the DMCA as alleged in Counts [V and V of TracFone's complaint, because the
Defendants’ conduct as alieged in this case does not come within the scope of the new
exemption. The Defendants’ pu:chase. and ré:ale of the TracFone handsets was for the

purpose of reselling those handsets for a profit, and not “for the sole purpose of lawfully

connecting to a wireless telephone communication network.” Because the exemption

does not apply to the conduct alleged in this case, there is no need for the Court 10 address

the validity of the exemption of the circumstances surrounding its enactment.

6. TracFone has suffered damages, including loss of goodwill and damage toits
reputation, as @ result of the Defendants’ conduct. TracFone is cotitled to injunctive relief
on the claims set forth in the complaint.

7. Final judgment 18 hereby entered against the Defendants, GasBoy Texas, Inc.,
a Texas corporation, Nooruddin Sultan Ali a/k/a Bob Ali, individually, and Shahnawaz

Ali, individually, and in favor of the Plaintiff, TrecFone Wireless, Inc., on all of the

claims set forth in TracFone's complaint.
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8. Defendants GasBoy Texas, Inc. and Nooruddin Sultan Ali a/k/a Bob Al are
jointly and severally liable for the damages caused to TracFone by their participation in
the Bulk Resale Venture and shall pay TracFone a confidential sum of money in |
accordance with the parties® scttlement agreement.

9. Defendants, and each and all of their representatives, a.génts, employess,
independent qontractors, servents and any and all persons and entities, inclﬁding the
Defendants’ relatives and associates, in active concert and participation with them, who
“sceive notics of this order, shall be and hereby are PERMANENTLY ENJOINED from:

a2 Purchasing, selling and/or shipping any wireless mobile phone that they
know or should know bears any Registered TracFone Trademark, or any
other trademark or service mark owned by TracFone, any other model of
wireless mobile device sold or marketed by TracFone or any of its
affiliated or related entities, such as America Movil, bearing any
Registered TracFone Trademark (“TracFone Handsets™). Specifically, the
Defendants are enjoined from purchasing, selling, and/or shipping, directly
or indirectly, all models of TracFone Handsets, including Net10 products,
regardless of whether such devices are new or used, whether in or out of
their original packaging, or whether “locked,” “unlocked,” “reflashed,” or
otherwise modified in any way by any person. This injunction applies to
all TracFone Handsets currently offered for sale by TracFone, or that may
be offered for sale in the future, as listed and updated from time to time on
TracFone's websites, http://tracfone.com/activation _pick_brand.jsp and

www net10.com, including without limitation the following TracFone
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Handsets:

Motorola W370 . Nokia 2126 LG 3280
Motorola C261 Nokia 2126i LG CG225
Motorola C139 Nolda 2600 LG 1500
Motorola V176 Nolkia 1100

Motorola V170 Nokia 1112

Motorola V171 Nokia 1600

Motorola C155 Nokia 2285

Motorola C343

b. reflashing and/or unlocking of any TracFone Handsct,

c. accessing, altering, erasing, tampering with, deleting or otherwise
disabling TracFone's proprietary prepaid cellular software contained
within any and all models of TracFone Handsets;

d. supplying TracFone Handsets to or facilitating or in any way assisting
other persons or entities who Defendants know or should know are

" engaged in reflashing and/or unlocking TracFone Handsets and/or
hacking, altering, erasing, tampering with, deleting or otherwise disabling
the software installed in TracFone Handsets;

e. supplying TracFone Handsets to, or facilitating or assisting, in any way,
other persons or entities who Defendants know or should know are
engaged in any of the. acts 'prohibitcd under this permanent injunction
including, without limitation, the buying , selling and/or shipping of
locked or unlocked TracFone Handsets; and

f. knowingly using the Registered Trat;Fone Trademarks or any other
trademark owned or used by TracFone now or in the future, without
TracFone’s prior written authorization.

10. The purchase, sale, or shipment of any TracFone Handsets without TracFone's
pﬁor written consent within and/or outside of the continental United States is and shall be
deemed a presumptive violation of this permanent injunction.

11. The last known address of Defendant GasBov is 3218 Commander Drive.
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12. The lzst known address of Defendant Bob Ali is 974 Mallard Drive, Coppell,
TX 75019. '

13. The last known address of Defendant Shahnawaz Ali is 974 Mallard Drive,
Coppell, TX 75019.

14. The address of Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc. is 5700 NW 112th Avenue,
Medley, FL 33178.

15. Defendants waive theu' right to appeal from the eatry of this Final Judgment.

16. The Court mtain§ jurisdiction over this matter and the parties to this action in -
order to punish any viclation of the terms of this Permanent Injunéﬁon by a finding of
contempt and a payment of damages to TracFone Wireless, Inc. in an amount of not less
than $5,000 for each TracFone Handset that a Defendant is found to have purchased, sold,
unlocked or sﬁppd in violation of this injunction.

17. The prevailing party in any procceding to enforce compliance with the terms
of this Pl an ‘ '@W&lﬁe zﬁﬂed to an award of its attorneys’ fees and costs.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers at the James Lawrence King

Federal Justice Byilding and United States Courthouse in Miami, Florida on this ;H_L day

" of 4 , 2007.

" b

ﬁorxomma JAMES LAWREN% G
D STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

Copies furnished to:

James B. Baldinger, Counsel for TracFone Wireless
Janet T. Munn, Counsel for Defendants

Molly Buck Ricbard, Counsel for Defendants
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United States District Court,
M.D. Forida,
Ortando Division.
TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC-, 2 Florida
corporation, Plintil,

v,

Ryan Maurice DIXON, wi/a Derrick Johason wt/2
Demick Jobnzon a/t/s Derrick

Jonzun, individually and /s Piphy Productions
and Give-A-Gifi-Bastet: Tracy
Nicole Dizon, individuelly and dfh Piphy
Productions and Give-A-Gifi-Bastet;
snd Log in the 805, LLC.. » Georpie limitcd
Tability compsny, Defendants.
Ne. 6:07-CV-0013-ORL-18-)GG.

Feb. 26, 2007.

Backpround: Prepaid wircless tclophome provider
brought sction alieging that vesellen vnlswiollty
disabled its copyrighted and proprictary sofware
instalied in phones and resold them as new under
provider's imdemarks for unawthorized use ouvtside

of #s system. Provider moved for permencat
injunciion.

Holding: The Disuict Count. G. Xendall Shup,
J.. held that ressllen’ sctions did mot [} within
exteption to Digital Milleanium Copyright Act
{DMCA).

Motion granted.

West Headnoles

Copyrights and Inteliectual Property =613
99%673 Mest Cited Ceses

Reselers’ sttions i disabling prepaid  wirsless
telephone  provider's copyrighted and proprictary
software installed in phooes end resclling them as
new for onauthorizzd use outside of it sysiem did
not Dt within exception 1o Digital Millenniom
Copyright Act (DMCA) for computer progmms in

form of fimware 1o cmble wireless iclephone
handsets o comnest 1o wircless  Aclephome
communication metwork, where restliers bnlocked
providers handsets for purposs of sesefiing those
hndsusfnrpmﬁl.mdml’nrmhmcseof
Inifully comnecting 10 wircless el
communication notwerk. 17 US.CA. § 1201 »
C.FR. } 201 40().

Trademarks =180

382Tk 1800 Most Cied Ceses

“TracFone.

v1236 Christopher Muck Paolini, Cawhon Fitlds,
PA. Orando, FL, James Blaker BaMinper,
Carion Ficlds, P.A., West Palin Bexch, FL., Steven
). Brodi. Cardton Ficlds, PA. Miami P for
Pleintiff.

Ryaa Manrice Dizon, Douglsville, GA, Pro se.
Tracy Nicols Dizon, Douglasville, GA, Pro se.”
Lost In the 30°S, LLC, l?oughsvme. GA, Pro s

FINAL JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT
INJUNCTION AGAINST DEFENDANTS RYAN
MAURICE DIXON,

TRACY NICOLE DIXON AND LOST IN THE
30's LLC

G. KENDALL SHARP, District Judge.

*o]  Phimiff, TracFone  Wirless, Inc,
("TracFose™), brovght the shove-captioned Jawsuit
agsinsi Defendants, Ryan Maurice Dizon WX
Desrick  Johnson a%/i  Derick  Johnzun e/ka
Dermrick  Jonzon. individually and d/b/s FIPHY
Productions wnd Give-A-Gift-Basker, Traty Nicole
Dixon. ingividually snd d/ba PIPHY Productiont
and Give-A-Gift-Basket: and Lost in the BU's, LLC,
2 Georgin limited Nigbility compeny (collectively the
*Defendants?), alleging  that  Defendaniz  are
engaged in two enlawiul schomes that have crosed

© 2007 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orig. U.5. Govi. Worke.

hnps://ﬁndpriancmaw.com/prim/prianm:am.r.spx'.7rt:AlFPZ.QZ&vr:Z.O&;p:CgrltonFP-Z... 612572007

PARDDDZ51




Case 4:07-cv-02205 Document 1-7 _ Filed 07/06/2007 Pag. s40of 36
011901 Page30of 5
475 F.Supp 28 1236 Pape 2

«75 F Supp24 1236, 2007 WL 570560 (M.DFw), 20 . L. Weckly Fed. D 506
(Cite 2z €75 P.Supp.2d 1236, 2007 WL 576540 (M.D.Fla))

mhsuniﬂhmloTncFon:mdwmm

trademarks and logo, snd GecTives CORSDME inio
penerally.

believiap the scheme is legitimate and suthorized by
TracFone.  TrzFone  alleges Defendants
frawdulently obtsin free airtime  from  TracFore
through the Promotion thea sell the aitime 10
unsuspecting third pasics for & profit

»1257 TracFone alieges Defendants’ first scheme
(the “Bulk Resale Scheme”) ievolves  the
unsuthorized xnd oplpwful bulk purchse and resale
of ‘TrocFonc  prepaid  wirchess ciephones
(TeratFone  Prepaid Phones® r  TFhomet’),
unsothorized and priawful compuier unlocking of
TracFone Prepeid Phomes, aherstion of TracFoos's
copyrighizd  and ) softwars compuier
code instalied in the Phomes, and vitirate saie of
countcrieitzd Phones 1o uRsuspecting end uszrs for
profit.

TracFone wsscried claims against the Defendants
for federal wedemark. infringement under 1S US.C.
§ 1114; copyright iafringement under 17 USC §
106 tircumveation of rechrological meesures that
conol  actets o propriciary sofiware  and
fficking in scrvices that circumvenl technolopicsl
mersures proleciing propristary sofiware under 17
USC. § 120, et Seq. a8 2 viohtioa of the Digiul
e the, Balk Millenalurs Copyright Act ("DMCA"), 15 smended,
}5 US.C. § 105), en 5290 irademark violation for
domain mame misuse; federa unfair compctition
asder 15 US.C. § 1125 tonious interference with
business relationships and prospective advantages
buginess  relationships between TracFone and its
manofscurers;  unfair competition and  fsks
sdventisisg under § $01.204, Pa. Stats imjury to

TracFonc Prepaid Phones From reteil siores such s
wal-Man, Target or Sam's Chb, snd by soliciting
others 1 purchase TracFone Preprit Phones in bulk
for the benefit of Defendantt. TracFonz slleges
Defendants acquire the TracFone Prepaid Phones
with the sctus) or consructive knowledge and intent
they the Phones will not be activaied foc use on the pusiness repotation and dilution of markt under §
TracFone prepaid  wircless netwock and that the 495451, Fl. Swi; fraud; civil conspinacy; and
Phones will be compaer-hacked. TracFone sllcpes unjoxt cnrichanent. Defendunt

s sdmit their Jiability
the purpose of this hacking, known 2 "refashing” uader the claims assened by TracFone. The Cowt.
or "unlocking.” is 1o cruce, remove and/or disable

having considered the Comptaint, Declurations wd
TracFooe's ctopyriphied snd propriciary  software Exbibls, Mcmonntum of Law, and  further
inttalied in the Phones, which enables the use of the cvidence submined therewith by TracFone and
TracFooc  Prcprid  Phoees exclusively  on

Defendants, accordingly hereby:
TracFone’s prcpaid  wircless  system. TroacFone
ulieges the refizshed Phones are then wafficked and
resold. st a premium, B ReW pnder TracFonc's
wademarks for unauthorized use outside of the 1. This Coun has jusisdiction over all the panics
TracFone prepaid wireless System. . snd ol of the chims sct fonh in TracFone’s

sr3 ORDERS, ADJUDGES xnd DECREES thar:

TracFone allcges _Defendsnis’ other scheme (the
“Fraudulent Alntime Scheme”), provides
Defendants with another mechanism for untawfully
profiting from their bulk scguisition of TratFone
Prepaid  Phones by caploiing  TracFone's
~Refer-A-Friend™ promotion  (the “Promotion”).
TrecFone afleges Defendants yectuit customers for
their Fruduient Alnime Scheme viz their websites,
www. trocfoneusa.com and
www.lostintheBDs/active_iracfones.him. which
contain uneuthorized foproductions ol the TracFone

ComplainL

*1238 Z. The Court finds that TracFone owns all
right, ttle, xnd interest in and 10 Incontcsiable
United  States  Trademark Registntion  Ho.
2,114,692, issued November 1B, 1597, for
TrscFone amd  Incontestable United  Stales
Trademask  Registration No. 211,017, issved
Stpiember 9, 2003, for TracFone {the “TrcFone
Trademarks”). The TracFone Trademarks e valid,
incontestable, distinctive. protecnable, {emous, have
acquircd  secondary meaning 3nd are aszocised
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exclusively with TracFone.

3. TracFooe owns i right, titke and interest 1o the
domain name www. trocfonecom.

4. The Court finds chat the conduct, althoeph
paintentional, alleged by TrcFone n the Complaint
violatrs the following satutesl federal tndemark
infringement ondes 15 US.LC § 1114 copyrigh
infringement onder 17 US.LC. § 105 circumrention
of technologicel mepsures thil conuOl 8ccess 0
proprictery software and trafficking is services that
circomvent  wchnologi mEasures  protecting
proprictary softuware ander 17 USC. § 1200, et
seq. a5 3 violmion of the Digital Millenaium
Copyright Act ("DMCA™). & amenged, 15 USC. §
10S), 1 ses. violation for domasin
nume misuse: federd unfulr competition onder 13
USC. § 1125 unfaic competition and false
pdvenising under § 501204, Fla. Stat. The Coont
furiher findt that Delendonts’ conduct, alleged in the
Complainl, conmitutes tomious  interferonce with
TracFone’s business selationships and prospetlive
adventopes  business relstionships  between
TracFone and its manufactoser, frand, civil
CoRSpincy, end unjust ensichmenl.

5. The Coun (finds Defendam’  conduct,
indcpendenily, in both the Bulk Remle Stheme and
the Frandulent Ainime Schems, has  cawsed
substantial harm to TracFone and the public
interest, snd will continue 1o cause subctsntial harm
10 TrocFone tnd the public interert. unless enjoined,
Consequently. TracFone is entitled 1 injunciive
relicl on the clairas sat forth in s Complaint.

6. On November 27, 2006, the Librasian of

Congress, vpos the recommendation of the Regisier

of Copyrights, issucd a Fina) Rule sesting forth sig

(6) chuses of copyrighted works that are cempl

from the provisioas of the DMCA., inclofing:
Compiier programi in e form of fumware that
cnable wirclest telephone handscts fo conneet 19
a wirckess iclephone communication
when circumvention is accomplished for the sole
purpose  of lawfully connecting 1o & wirtless
jelephone communication nerwork.

31 FedRep. 68472 (Nov. 27.2006) (amending 37

CER. § 201.4Db)). The Coun finds thl this new
cxemplion docs nok absolre the Defendanis of
liability for their violaions of the DMCA xs aicged
in Cousts IE snd IV of TracFones Complrint,
bacsuse the Defendenis’ conducs &5 alleged in this
:tsedoanolmvilhhdnmp:oftheuw
sxomption. The Defendants’  misconduct  and
involvement in uniocking TracFone bandsets wat
for the of resefling those handsets for »
mofit, and nat “for the sole par of wfully
connecting to » wirclest telephone communication
network.® Becavae the cxemplion docs hot apply 1o
theeudmd\:gedhﬁ\hcna.m&smwaﬂor
thmuMdnnﬂwvmﬁqdhumpﬁmor
the circumstances surrounding jts enactamenl.

«r3 7, Finad judgment s hereby entered against the
Defendams, Rysn Maurict Dizon, Tracy HNicole
Dizon. sn8 Logt in the 80 LLEC. snd in favor of
the Piaimitl, TracFone Wireless, Inc.. on alt of the
cluirns sei forth in TracFone's Complaint.

8. Delendsex, and  tach and all of their
representatives, RpERLS. assigns, employees, 1239
independent  cOBUBLIOT, relatives,  msSDCistes,
scrvants and eny And il persons snd cniitics in
sctive toncest 1ad participation with them who
rwehenotiwohbh()rdetshdlbemmbym
PERMANENTLY ENJOINED from:

a. purchasing snd/or selling. except for their own
personal tse. &y wireless mobilc phone that they
know or should know bears any TracFone
Trademark, any other trademuck owned or wused
by TrcFone, of zay other model of wircless
mobile phoae sold or marketed by TmcFone
(‘ToacFone  Handsets™). Specificalty,  the
Defendants are enjoined from purchasing andfor
selling s}l models of TracFone Handsels currently
offered for sale by TrecFone, or that may be
offered for sale in the futore, as listed snd
vpduled regulsdy oh hups/t
trocfone.com/octivation _pict_brond jsp.

TracFone's websie, including withoul fimitation
the following celiuter phone handsets:

Nokia 1100

Notia 1112

Nokia 1221

Nokls 2126

© 2007 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orip. US. Govt. Works.

hw.comlprim!pﬁmsmm.aspx'?rs=IFP7..92&vr:'Z.D&.sp:CarhonFP-B. -

672912007

PARDDD253

e s




Case 4:07-cv-02206

475 F.Supp.2d 1236

scument 1-7  Filed 07/06/2007 P
011903

: 36 of 36

Page Sof 5

Page d

475 F.Supp.2d 1236, 2000 W1 570540 (34.D ), 20 Pl L. Weekly Fed. D 506

(Cite 15: €75 F.Sopp2d 1236, 2007 WL 570540 D Fix))

Nokia 2285

Nokia 2600

Nokia 261D

Nokia 3390

Nokia 5100

Nokia 252 (Amiog)

Nokla 282 (Amdop)

Nokis 918 (Analog)

Mowmh YIT0

Motorols V176

Mowrols C139

Mowrolt C155

Motorots C261

Motorols CIO

towrola V&0

Motorols 120

Motorota Bajlina

LG 328D

LG 5150

LG C1300

LG C1i500

LG CG22s

Uniden 2000

Unidea Minicel

StarTrac

Radio Shack

MicroTae

Profile

Lifestyle SO0 .

5. refushing and/or wolocking of any TracFone
Handset;

c. accessing, alterisg. erxsing. tsmpering with,
delcting  or i disabling TracFone's
propriciary prepaid cellular software contained
within amy end all models of TracFone Handsers;

d. facilitating or in any wmy aesisting  other
persons or cmities who Defendants know  of
<houlkd krow are engeged in reflashing endloc
unfocking TrascFone Handsas  andior hacking,
aliering. ensing. nmpering with, deleting or
otherwise gisabling the software insualled in
TracFone Handsets:

¢. reselfing. of panicipating in of faciiitating the
sesele by others, of TracFone airmime units,
sinime cards, or preprid ainime minutes;

{. facilimiing o in any way assisting other
persons or entities who Defendants know o
should know am engaged in amy of the acts

prohibiizd umadzr  this  permancsl injunction
including, withow1 limitation, the buying and/or
seliing of unlocked TracFons Kandselx -

g- using or opentisg websites with 1 domain
names www.iracfonexsa.com  *1240 or which
uses "wracfones ® or “trocfone °; wnd

h Enowingly using the TracFonc Trademarks of
sny other tademark pwned or ustd by TracFone,
or that & Hkely o cause confosion  with
TracFone's Trademarks. withont TracFone's prior
written authorization,

#04 9, Defendants and TrecFone waive their righl
1o appesl [rom the entry of this Fina) judgement.

10. The Coun retalns jurisdiction over this mstisr
and the partics 15 this sctica in order 10 punish ty
viphation of the termt of this Permanent Injuntiion
by a finding of coxtcrnpl and 3 prymeat of damapes
1> TracFone Wircless, Inc. in en zmount of not less
than 55000 [for cach TracFone Hendsel that
Defendxats are found 1o have purchesed, sold, or
unlocked ia violtion of this injunction,

fi. The prevailing party in any proceeding 10
enforce  complisace  with  the  lerms of this
Permanent Injuncion skall be catiied to a8 award
of irs snorncys’ fecs and coSIE.

€15 FSupp.23 1236, 2007 WL 570540 (M.D.Fie).
20 Fla. L Weekly Fed. D 506

END OF DOCUMENT
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Case 1:07-cv-21242-JLK  Document 27 Entered on FLSD Docket 08/30/200 Page 10f9
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASENO. 07 21242-CIV-KING/GARBER

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC.
a Florida corporation,

Plaintiffs,
VS,

PHONES PHONES, INC., a Texas
Corporation, WIRELESS HOUSING,
INC., a Texas corporation, ASPAC, INC.,
a Texas corporation, MURAD MEHDI
VELAN], individually, AMIN

SAYANI, a/k/a Nanshad Sayani,
Individually, and JOHN DOES NOS.

| throngh 20, individnally,

Defendants.
/

FINAL JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT INJ UNCTION -

Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc. (TracFon€), brought the above-captioned lawsnit
against Defendants, Phones N Phoses, Inc., & Texas corporation (Phones), Wireless Universe,
Inc., a Texas corporation (“‘Wirclesd), Aspac, Inc., a Texas corporation (Aspad), Murad Mehdi
Velani, individually (Velani), Naushad Sayani, individually (Naushad) and Celina Sayani,
individually (Celind), and (collcctivcly"[)efendmtﬂ'), asserting that Defendants are engaged in an
unlawful enterprise involving the acquisition, sale and counterfeiting of large quantities of
TracFone prepaid wireless telephones (Tra;:Fonc Prepaid Phonef’ or “Phoned’) that causes
substantial and irreparable harm t0 TracFone (the'Bulk Resale Venture).

Defendants perpetrate the Bulk Resale Venture by acquiring bulk quantities of TracFone

Prepaid Phones from retail stores such as Wal-Mart, Target or Sam's Club, and by soliciting

MIAK2634213.4
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Case 1:07-cv-21242-JLK Document 27  Entered

others to purchase TracFone Prepaid ‘Phones in bulk for the benefit of Defendants. TracFone
asserts that Defendants acquire the TracFone Prepaid Phones with the actual or constructive
knowledge and intent that the Phones will not be activated for use on the TracFone prepaid
wireless network and that the Phones will be computer-hacked. The purpose of this backing,
nown as‘Seflashing’ or'inlocking,’is to erase, remove and/or disable TracFone's copyrighted and
proprietary software installed in the Phones (TracFope Proprictary Softward), which enables the
use of the TracFone Prepaid Phones exclusively on TracFongs prepaid wireless system.
TracFone asserts that the reflashed Phones are then trafficked and resold overseas, at 2 premivm, |
as new under TracFope's trademarks for anauthorized use outside of the TracFone prepaid
wireless system.

TracFone Prepaid Phones arc sold subject to terms and conditons (Terms and
Conditiond) which conspicuously restrict and limit the sale and use of TracFone Prepaid Phones.
These Terms and Conditions are set forth in printed inserts that are included in the packaging
with every TracFone Phone, and are also available to the public on TracFone's website. T‘m:'
Terms and Conditions are also referenced in printed warnings that are placed on the outside of
the retail packaging of the Phones. The Terms and Conditions and language on the packaging
constitute a valid binding contract.

Pursuant to the Terms and Conditions and the language on the packaging, purchasers of
TracFone Prepaid Phones agree: (a) to use th:if Phones only in conjunction with TracFones
prepaid wireless service, (b) not to tamper with or alter TracFone Prepaid Phones or the Phones
software, enter unanthorized PIN numbers in the Phones, engage in any other unauthorized or
illegal use of the Phones or the TracFone service, or assist others in such acts, and (c) not to

export any TracFone Prepaid Phones outside of the United States.

MIAR2634213.1
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As 2 result of the Bulk Resale Venture, TracFone has asserted claims against Defendants
for breach of contract, federal trademark infringement under 15 USC. § 1114 copyright
infringement under Title 17 of the United Sta.ics Code; circumvention of technological measares
that control access to proprietary software and trafficking in services that circumvent
technological measures protecting proprietary software under 17 US.C. § 1201, et seq. as a
violation of the Digital Milleaninm Copyright Act (DMCA?; mfair competition under the

Trademark Act of 1946, as amended, 15 US.C. § 1051, et. seq.; tortions interference with.

business relationships and prospective advantages business relationships betwesn TracFone and
its manufacturers; unfair competition and false advertising under §§ 501 204 and 501.211, Fla.
Stat.: harm to TracFones goodwill and reputation under § 495.151, Fla. Stat; civil conspiracy;
and unjust enrichment. Defendants ﬁ'lcd an Answer, denying TracFones allegations. The Court,
ha';(ing reviewed the Complaint and file and being otherwise duly advised in the premises, it is
hereby .

ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECﬁEED that

1. This Court has jurisdiction aver all the parties and all of the claims set forth in
TracFon€s complaint. |

9 The Court finds that TracFone owns all right, title, and interest in and to Incontestable
United States Trademark Registration No. 2,114,692, issued November 18, 1997, for TracFone,
United States Trademark Registration flo. 2,761,017, issued September 9, 2003, for TracFone
and United States Trademark Registration No. 3,118,250 for Net 10, issued July 18, 2006
(collectively the “Registered TracFone Trademarks). The Registered Trachnc Trademarks are
valid, distinctive, protectable, famous, have acquired secondary meaning and are associated

exchusively with TracFone. The Court finds that the trademark registered under Registration No.

MIAK2634213.0




Case 1:07-cv-21242-JLK Document 27  Entered on FLSD Docket 08/30/2007 Page 4 of 9
2,114,692 is incontestable. The Court further finds that TracFone holds 2 valid and enforcezble
copyright on the TracFone Proprietary Software.

3. The Court finds that the Terms and Conditions and the langoage on the packaging .
constitute 2 valid binding contract enforceable against Defendants. The Court finds that (a)
facilitating others to use TracFone Prepaid Phones in conjunction with service providers other
than TracFone, (b) tampering with or alt;ring TracFone Prepaid Phopes or the Phones software,
entzring unanthorized PIN nurmbers in the Phones for purposes of unlocking er reflashing the
Phones, or facilitating others in such acts, and/or (c) exporting TracFone Prepaid Phones ontside
of the United States, réspc;:tively, constitute independent breaches of contract for which
TracFone is entitled to relief.

4, The Court finds that the conduct alleged in the complaint, if proven would violate the
following statutes: 15 US.C. § 1114 (trademark infringement); cppyright infringement under
Title 17 of the United States Code; 17 U.S.C. § 1201 (circumvention of technological measures
that control access to proprietary software under the DMCA and trafficking in services that
circumvent technological measures protecting copyrighted software); 15 U.S.C. § 1125 (unfair
competition); unfair competition and false advertising under §§ 501.204 and 501.211, Fla. Stat;
and harm to TracFones goodwiu and reputation under § 495.151, Fla. The Court further ﬁnds
that the conduct alleged in the complaint, if proven, would constitnte tortious interference with
TracFone's advantageous business relation;ship, civil conspiracy, and unjust earichment, and has
caused substantial and irreparable barm to TracFone, and would continue to cause substantial

and irreparable harm to TracFone unless enjoined.

MIaN2634213.1
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5. On November 27, 2006, the Librarian of Congrcss.'upon the recommendation of the
Register of Copyrights, issued a Final Rule setring forth six (6) classes of copyrighted works that
are exempt from the provisions of the DMCA, including:
Computer programs in the form of firmware that enable wircless telephone
hendsets to compect to 2 wireless telephone communication petwork, whed

circumvention. is accomplished for the sole purpose of lawfuolly connecting to 2
wireless telephone communication network.

71 Fed. Reg. 68472 (Nov. 27, 2006) (amending 37 CF.R. § 201.40(b)). The Court finds that this
new exemption does not absolve the Defendants of liability for their violations of the DMCA as
alleged in Counts IV and V of TracFone's complaint, because the Defendants conduct as alleged
in this case does not come within the scope of the new exemption. The Defendants purchase and
resale of the TracFone handsets was for the purpbse of reselling those handsets for a profit, and
not*for the sole purpose of lawfully connecting o 2 wireless telephone communication network”’
Because the cxcmptidn does not apply to the conduct alleged in this case, there is no need for the
Conrt to address the validity of the exemption or the circumstances surrounding its enactment.

6. TracFone bas suffered damages, including loss of goodwill and damage to its
reputation, as 2 result of the Defendantd conduct. TracFone is entitled o injunctive relief on the
claims set forth in the complaint.

7. Final judgment is hereby entered against the Defendants, Phones N Phones, Inc., a
Texas corporation, Wireless Universe, Inc., a Texas corporation, Aspac, Inc., a Texas
corporation, Murad Mehdi Velani, individually, Naushad Sayani, individually and Celina Sayani,
individually (collccﬁvcly‘Defcndantﬂ'), and in favor of the Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc., on
all of the claims set forth in TracFonés complaint.

R. Defendants, and each and all of their representatives, 2gents, employees, independent

contractors, servants and any and all persons and entities, including the Defendants relatives and

Mlak2634213.1




Case 1:07-cv-21242-JLK Document 27 Entered on FLSD Docket 08/30/2007 Page 6 of 9
asspciates, in active concert and participation with them, who receive notice of this order, shall
be and hereby are PﬁRMANENTLY ENJOINED from:

a. -Purchasing, selling and/or shipping any wireless mobile phope that they know or
should know bears any Registered TracFone Trademark, any other tradernark
owped by TracFone, or any other model of wircless mobile device sold or

" marketed by TracFone or @y of its affiliated o:: related entities, such as America
Movil, bearing any Registered TracFone Trademark (TracFone Handsets’).
Specifically, the Dgfcndams are enjoined from purchasing, selling and/or
shipping, directly or indirectly, all models of TracFone Handsets, ;lnclu;iing Net
10 products, regardless of whether such devices are new or used, whether in or
out of their original packaging, or whether “peked.’ ‘unlocked?’ ‘feflashed;’ ar
otherwise modiﬁéd in any way by any pcrs;on. This injunction applies to all
TracFone Handsets currently offered for sale by TracFone, or that may be offered
for sale in the futore, as listed and updated from time to time on TracFones
websites, htIp://tracfonc.com/activation_pick_brand.jsp and www.etlO.com,

including witbout limitation the following TracFone Handsets:

Motorola W370 Nokia 2126 LG 3280
Motorola C261 . Nokia 21261 LG CG225
Motorola C139 Nokia 2600 LG 1500
Motorola V176 Nokia 1100

Motorola V170 Nokia 1112

Motorola V171 Nokia 1600

Motorola C155 Nokia 2285

Motorola C343

b. reflashing and/or unlocking of any TracFone Handset;

MIAN2634213.1
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¢. accessing, altering, erasing, tampering Wwith, deleting or otherwise disabling
TracFone's proprietary prepaid cellular software contzined within any and all
models of TracFone Handsets;

d. sopplying TracFone Handsets to or facilitating or in any way assisting other
persons or entiies who Defendants kmow or should know are engaged in
reflashing and/or unlocking TracEFone Handsets and/or hacking, altering, erasing,
tampering with, deleting or ofherwise disabling the software installed in TracFone
Hazndsets; '

e. supplying TracFone Handsets to, or facilitating or assisting, in any way, other
persons or entities who Defcndﬁnts know or should know are engaged in any of
the acts prohibited under this permanent injunction inclnding, withoutﬁmitatjon,
the buying , selling and/or shipping of locked or unlocked TracFone Handsets;
and

f. knowingly using the Registered TracFone Trademarks or any other trademark
owned or used by TracFone now or in the future, without TracFone's prior written
authorization.

9. The shipment of any TracFone Handsets within and/or outside of the continental
United Siates is and shall be deemed a presumptive violation of this permanent injunction.
10. The last known address of Defendant Phones N Phones, fnc '4325 Rice Lane,

Carroliton, TX 75010.

11. The last known address of Defendant Wireless Universe, Inc.‘ 4325 Rice Lane,
Carroliton, TX 75010.

MIAK2634213.1
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12 The last known address of Defendant Aspac, Inc. is 1620 N. I-30, Suitc 308,
Carrollton, TX 75006.

13. The Jast known address of Defendant Murad Mehdi Velani is 1220 Indian Run Drive,
Carrollton, TX 75010.

14. The last known address'of Defendant Naushad Sayani is 4325 Rice Lane, Carroliton,
TX 75010.

15. The last known address of Defendant Celina Sayani is 4325 Rice Lane, Carrollton,
TX 75010.

16. The address of Plaintiff, TracFone Wircless, Inc., is 8390 NW 25% Swreet, Miami, FL
33122.

17. Defendants waive their right to appeal from the entry of this Final Judgment. '

18. The Court retains jurisdiction over this matter and the parties to this action in order to
punish any violation of the terms of this Permanent Injunction by a finding of conternpt and a
payment of damages to TracFone Wireless, Inc. in an amount of pot Jess than $5,000 for cach

TracFone Handset that a Defendant is found to havc purchased, sold, unlocked or shipped in
violation of this injunction.

19. The prevailing party in any proceeding to enforce compliance with the terms of this

Permanent Injunction shall be entitled to an award of its attorneys fees and costs.

DONE AND ORDERED in Dallas, Texas, this _32 day of 40_7 ,2007.

States District Judge

v/

Copies furnished to:

James B. Baldinger, Counsel for TracFone Wireless
Janet T. Munn, Counsel for Defendants

MIAK2634213.1
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Molly Buck Richard, Counsel for Defendants
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
ORLANDO DIVISION

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC.,

Plaintiff, . :
CASE NO.: 6:06-CV-01257-ORL-18-JGG
vs.

CLINTON RIEDEMAN d/b/a LARRY"S CELL,
LAWRENCE RIEDEMAN d/b/a LARRY"S CELL.
and ROBIN KETCHAM d/b/a LARRY'S CELL,

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT INJUNCTION AGAINST
DEFENDANT CLINTON RIEDEMAN

DEFENDANI CLAIN 3 N A

Plainﬁff. TracFone Wireless, Inc. (“TracFone™). brought the above-captioned
lawsuit against Defendant, Clinton Riedeman d/b/a Larry's Cell. (“Defendant™), asserting that
Defendant was cngaged in an unlawful enterprise that involves the acquisition, sale and
counterfeiting of large quantities of TracFone prepaid wireless telephones (“TracFore Prepaid
Phones™ or “Phones™) purchased from various retail outlets such as Wal-Mart, Target and Sam’s
Club, the solicitation and payment of others 1o bulk purchase TracFone Prepaid Phones for
Defendant’s benefit, computer hacking and erasing or otherwise disabling the prepaid software
installed in the TracFone Prepaid Phones essential for consumers to access TracFone's prepaid
wireless network, or reselling the Phones to others who disable the software, and ultimately sell
the counterfeit Phones as new under incontestable TracFone trademarks for the unauthorized use

outside of the TracFone prepaid wireless system.

TracFone asserted claims against the Defendant for circumvention of technological

MIAF2835272.2
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measures that control access to proprietary software and trafficking in services that circumvent
technological measures protecting proprietary software under 17 US.C. § 1201, et. seq. as 2
violation of the Digital Millennium Copyright Act (“DMCA™), federal trademark mfnngcmcnt
and unfair competition under the Trademark Act of 1946, as amended, 15 US.C. §1051, er. seq..
tortious interference with business relationships and prospective advantages business
relationships between TracFone and its manufacturers, unfair competition and deceptive trade
practices under § 501.204, Fla. Stat, and injury to business reputation and dilution of marks
under § 495.151, Fla. Stat. On September 18, 2006, the Court entered a Default against all of the
Defendants, including Defendant, Clinton Riedeman. Accordingly, it is bereby,
ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that:

1. This Court has jurisdiction over all the parties and all of the claims set forth in

TracFone's complaint.

2. The Court finds that TracFone owns all right, title, and interest in and to
Incontestable United States Trademark Registration No. 2,1 14.692. issued November 18, 1997,
for TracFone and Incontestable United States Trademark Registration No. 2,716,017, issved
September 9, 2003, for TracFone (the “TracFone Trademarks™). The TracFone Trademarks are
valid, incontestable, distinctive, protectable, famous, have acquired secondary meaning and are
associated exchasively with TracFone. | |

3. The Court finds that the Defendant has violated the following statutes: 17 U.S.C.
§ 1201 (circumvention of technological measures that control access to proprietary software
"under the DMCA and trafficking in services that circumvent technological measures protecting
copyrighted software), 15 U.S.C. § 1.1 14 (trademark infringement). 15 U.S.C. § 1125 (unfair

. competition), §§ 501.204 and 501.211, Fla. Stat. (unfair competition. deceptive trade practices

MIAF26352722
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and false advertising) and § 495.151, Fla. Stat. (injury 1o business reputation and dilution of
urademarks). The Court further fnds that Defendant’s conduct. alleged in the complaint,
constitutes tortuous interference with TracFope’s advantageous businéss relationship and has

cansed substantial harm to TracFone, and will continue to cause substantial harm to TracFone
unless enjoined.

4, On. November 27, 2006, the Librarian of Congress, upon the recommendation of
the Register of Ctl_\pyrigh‘rs. issued a Final Rule setting forth six (6) classes of copyrighted works

that are exempt from the provisions of the DMCA., including:

Computer programs in the form of firmware that enable wireless telephone
handsets to connect 1o 2 wireless telephone communication petwork, when

circumvention is accomplished for the sole purpose of lawfully connecting to a
wireless telephone communication network.

71 Fed, Reg. 68472 (Nov. 27. 2006) (amending 37 c.F.iz_ § 201.40(b)). The Court finds that this
pew exemption does not absolve the Defendant of liability for his violations of the DMCA as
alleged in Counts 1 through II of TracFone's complaint, because the Defendant's conduct as
alleged in this case does not come within the scope of the new exemption. The Defendant’s
purchase and rcsa.h.: of the TracFone handsets was for the purpose of reselling those handsets for

a profit, and not “for the sole purpose of lawfully connecting to 2 wireless ielephone

communication network.” Because the exemption docs not apply o the conduct alleged in this

case, there is no need for the Court to address the validity of the excmption or the circumstances

surrounding its enactment.

5. TrecFone has suffered damages, including loss of goodwill and damage to its
reputation, as a result of the Defendant’s conduct. TracFone is entitled to injunctive relief and

damages on the claims set forth in the complaint.

MIAZ26352722
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6.

Final judgment is hereby entered against the Defendant. Clinton Riedeman, and in

favor of the Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc., on il of the claims set forth in TracFone's

complaint.

7.

Defendant, Clinton Riederan. and ecach and all of his representatives, agemts,

employees, independent contractors, relatives, associates, servants and any and all persons and

entities in active concert and participation with them who receive notice of this order shall be and

hereby are PERMANENTLY ENJOINED from:

a. purchasing and/or selling any wireless mobile phone that they know or should

MIAS28332722

know bears any TracFone Trademark, any other trademark owned or used by
TracFone, or any other model of wireless mobile phone sold or marketed by
TracFone (“TracFone Handsets™). Specifically, the Delendants are enjoined from
purchasing and/or selling all models of TracFone Handsets currently offered for
sale by TracFone. or that may be offered for sale in the future, as listod-and
updated from time .to time on TracFone's website,

http://tracfone.com/activation _pick_brand.jsp, including without limitation the

following TracFone handsets:
Motorola W370 Nokia 2126 LG 3280
Motorola C261 Nokia 21261 LG CG225
Motorola C139 Nokia 2600 LG 1500
Motorola V176 . Nokia 1100 '
Motorola V170 Nokia 1112
Motorola V171 Nokia 1600
Motorola C155 Nokia 2285

Motorola C343

b. reflashing and/or unlocking of any TracFone Handset;
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c. acccssiﬁg. altering, erasing, tampering With, deleting or otherwise disabling
TracFone's proprietary prepaid cellular software contained within any and all
models of TracFone Handsets;

d. facilitating or in any way assisting other persons or entities who Defendants know

or should know are engaged in reflashing and/or unlocking TracFone Handsets

and/or hacking, altering, erasing, tampering with, deleting or otherwise disabling
the software installed in TracFone Handscts;

facilitating or in any way assisting other persons or entities who Defendants know

or should know are engaged in any of the acts prohibited under this permanent

injunction including, without limitation, the buying and/or selling of unlocked

TracFone Handsets; and

£ knowingly using the TracFone Trademarks or any other trademark owned or used

by TracFone, or that is likely to cause confusion with TracFone's Trademarks,

without TracFone's prior written authorization.
B. The last known address of Defendant Clinton Riedeman is 1722 West Acre Drive, .

St. Cloud, FL 34769.

9. The address of Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc., is 8390 NW 25" Street, Miami,
FL 33122.

10.  Defendant, Clinton Riedeman, and TracFone waive tbeir right to appeal from the
entry of this Final Judgment.

11.  The Court retains jurisdiction over this matler and the parties to this action in
order to punish any violation of the terms of this Permanent Injunction by a finding of contempt

and a payment of damages to TracFone Wireless. Inc. in an amount of not less than $5,000 for

MIAS26352722
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each TracFone Handset that Defendant is found to have purchased, sold, or unlocked in

violation of this injunction.

12.  The prevailing party in any proceeding to enforc'c compliance with the terms of
this Permanent Injunction shall be entitled to an award of its attorneys” fees and costs.

13.  This case remains pending against Defendant Robin Keicham and Defendant
Lawrence Riedeman, and the Court finds that there is‘no_ just reason for delay of the entry of
judgment against i)cfcndént, Clinton Riedeman and therefore directs the Clerk to enter Judgment

as set forth herein. See Fed.R.Civ.P. 54(b).

DONE AND ORDERED in Orlando, Florida, this _éday of jm)/ , 2007.

The Hoporable G. Kendall Sharp

United States District Judge
Copies fumnished to: .

James B. Baldinger, Counsel for TracFone Wireless
Jeffrey Blau, Counsel for Defendant Robin Ketcham

! for Defendants Clinton Riedeman, Lawrence

Frank Killgore, Jr. and Alyson Innes, Counse
Riedeman and Reidcor. Inc.

MLAX26352722
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.: 07-21243-CIV-KING

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC,, 2
Flerida corporation,

Plaintiff,
vs.

GASBOY TEXAS, INC., 2 Texas corporation,
OOZI ENTERPRISES, INC., a Texas
corporation, NOORUDDIN SULTAN ALI
a/k/a BOB ALl ndividually,

SHAHNAWAZ AL]L,

individually, JOHN DOE NOS. ! through
20,

individually,

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT INJUNCTION

Plaintiff, TracFone Wircless, Inc. (“TracFone;'), brought the above-captioned
laws.uit agginst Defendants, GasBoy Texas, Inc., 2 Texas corporation (“GasBoy™), ,
Nooruddin Sultan Ali a/k/a Bob Ali, individually ("Bob Ali"), and Shahnawaz Al,
individually (“Shahnawaz Ali") (collectively “Defendants”), asserting that Defendants are
engaged man unlawful enterprise involving the acquisition, sale and counterfeiting of
large quantities of TracFone prepaid wireless telephones (“TracFone Prepaid Phones™ or
“Phones”) that causes substantial and irreparable harm to TracFone (the “Bulk Resale
Venture™).

TracFone asserts that Defendants perpetrate the Bulk Resale Venture by acquiring

bulk quantities of TracFone Prepaid Phones from retail stores such as Wal-Mart, Target
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or Sam’'s Club, and by soliciting others to purchase TracFone Prepaid Phones in bulk for
e benefit of Dofendants. TracFono asserts that Defendants scquire the TracFone
Prepaid Phones with the actual or constructive lméwledge and intent that the Phones will
not be activated for use on the TracFone prepaid wireless network and that the Phones
will be computer-hacked. The purpose of this hacking, known as “reflashing” or
“unlocking,” is to erase, remove and/or disable TracFone’s @yﬁghtﬁ and proprietary
software installed in the Phones (“TracFone Proprietary Software™), which enables the
use of the TracFone Prepaid Pboné exclusively on TracFone's prepaid wireless system.
TracFone asserts that the refizshed Phones are then trafficked and resold overseas, at a
premium, as new under TracFone's trademarks for unauthorized use outside of the
TracFone prepaid wireless system.

TracFone Prepaid Phones are sold subject to terms and conditions (“Terms and
Conditions™) which conspicuously restrict and limit the sale and use of TracFone Prepaid
Phones. These Terms and Conditions are set forth in printed inserts that are included in
the packaging with every TracFone Phone, and ar; also available to the public on .
TracFone's website. The Terms and Conditions are also referenced in printed warmings
that are placed on the outside of the retail packaging of the Phones. The Terms and
Conditions and language on the packaging constitutc a valid binding contract.

Pursuant to the Terms and Conditions and the language on the packaging,
purchasers of TracFone Prepaid Phones agree: (2) fo use their Phones only in conjunction
with TracFone's prepaid wireless service, (b) not to tamper with or alter TracFone
Prepaid Phones or the Phones’ software, enter unauthorized PIN numbers in the Phones,

engage in any other unauthorized or illegal use of the Phones or the TracFone service, o




Case 1:07-cv-21243-JLK  Document 26 Entered on FLSD Docket 08/27/2007 Page3ofB

assist others in such acts, and (c) not to export any TracFone Prepaid Phones outside of
the United States.

As a resnlt of the Bulk Resale Venture, TracFone has asserted claims against
Defendants for breach of contract; federal trademark infringement under 15 US.C. §
1114; copyright infringement under Title 17 of the United States Code; circumvention of
technological measures that control access to proprietary software and trafficking in
services that circumvent t'echno]ogical measures protecting proprietary software under 17
USC.§ izm, et. seq. as a violation of the Digital Millennium Copyright Act
(“DMCA’™); unfair wmpcﬁﬁon under the Trademark Act of 1946, as amended, 15US.C.
§ 1051, et. seq.; tortious interference with business relationships and prospective
advantages business relationships between TracFone and its manufacturers; unfair
competition and false advertising under Fla. Stat. § 501.204; harm to goodwill and
business reputation under Fla. Stat. § 495.151; civil conspiracy; and unjust enrichment.
The Court, having reviewed the Cﬁmplaint and file and being otherwise duly edvised in
the premises, it is hereby .

ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that:

1. This Court has jurisdiction over all the parties and all of the claims set forth in
TracFone's Complaint. |

2. The Court finds that TracFone owns all right, title, and interest in and to
Incontestable United States Trademark Registration No. 2,114,692, issued November 18,
1997, for TracFone, United States Trademark Registration No. 2,761,017, issued
September 9, 2003, for TracFone and i'.Jnited States Trademark Registration No.

3,118,250 for Net 10, issued July 18, 2006 (collectively the “Registered TracFone
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Trademarks™). The R.cgmtcred TracFone Trademarks are valid, distinctive, protectable,
famous, have acquired secondary meaning and are associated exclusively with TracFone.
The Conurt finds that the trademark registered under Registration No. 2,114,692 is
incontestzble. The Court further finds that TracFone holds a valid and enforceable
copyright on the TracFone Proprietary Software.

3. The Court finds that the Terms and Conditions and tﬁe language on the
packaging constltmc a valid binding contract enforceable against Defendants. The Court
finds that (a) facilitating others to use TracFone Prepaid Phones in conjunction wﬂh
service providers other than TracFone, (b) tampering with or altering TracFone Prepaid
Phones or the Phones® software, entering unauthorized PIN numbers in the Phones for
p!npoﬁs of unlocking or reflashing the Phones, or facilitating others in such acts, and/&
(¢) exporting TracFone Prepaid Phones outside of the United States, respectively,
constitute independent breaches of contract for which TracFone is entitled fo relief.

4. The Court finds that the conduct alleged in the complaint, if proven would
violate the following statutes: 15 U.S.C. § 1114 (tradémark infringement); copyright
infringement under Title-17 of the United States Code; 17 U.S.C. § 1201 (circumvention
of technological measures that control access to proprictary software under the DMCA
and trafficking in services that circumvent technological measures protecting copyrighted
software); 15 U.S.C. § 1125 (unfair competition); and unfair competition and false
advertising under Fla. Stat. § 501.204; harm to goodwill and business reputation under
Fla. Stat. § 495.151. The Court further finds that the conduct alleged in the complaint, if

proven, would constitute tortious interference with TracFone's advantageous business

relationship, civil conspiracy, and unjust errichment, and has caused substantial and
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irreparable harm to TracFone, and would continue to cause substantiﬂ and irreparable
barm to TracFone unless enjoined.

5. On November 27, 2006, the Librarian of Congress, upon the recommendation
of the Register of Copyrights, issned a Final Rule setting forth'six (6) classes of
copyrighted works that are exempt from the provisions of the DMCA, including:

Computer programs in the form of Grmware that enable wireless telephone

handsets to connect to a wireless telephone communication network, when

circumvention is accomplished for the sole purpose of lawfully connecting
to a wireless telephone communication network.

71 Fed. Reg. 68472 (Nov. 27, 2006) (amending 37 C.FR. § 201 AO(b)). The Court finds
that this new exemption does not absolve the Defendants of liability for their violations of

the DMCA as alleged in Counts IV and V of TracFone's complaint, because the

Defendants® conduct as alleged in this case does not come within the scope of the new

exemption. The Defendants’ purchase and resale of the TracFone handsets was for the

purpose of reselling those handsets for a profit, and not “for the sole purpose of lawfully

connecting to a wircless telephone communication network.” “Because the exemption
does not apply to the conduct alleged in this case, there is no need for the Court to address
the validity of the exemption or the circumstances surrounding its enactment.

6. TracFone has suffered damages, including loss of goodwill and damage 10 its

reputation, as a result of the Defendants’ conduct. TracFone is entitled to injunctive relief

on the claims set forth in the cornplaint.
7. Final judgment is bereby entered against the Defendants, GasBoy Texas, Inc.,
a Texas corporation, Nooruddin Sultan Ali a/k/a Bob Al, individually, and Shahnawaz

Ali, individually, and in favor of the Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc., on all of the

claims set forth in TracFone’s complaint.
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8. Defendants GasBoy Texas, Inc. and Nooruddin Sultan Ali ak/a Bob Ali are
jointly gnd severally liable for the damages caused to TracFone by their participation in
the Bulk Resale Venture and shall pay TracFone a confidential sum of money in |
accordance with the parties’ settlement agreement.

9. Defendants, and cach and all of their representatives, agents, employees,
independent contractors, servants and any and all persons and entities, inclﬁding the
Defendants’ mlgﬁves snd associates, in active concert and participation with them, who
receive notice of this order, shall be and hercby are PERMANENTLY ENJOINED from:

a. Purchasing, selling and/or shipping any wireless mobilc phone that they .
¥now or should know bears any Registered TracFone Trademark, or any
other trademark or service mark owned by TracFone, any other model of
wireless mobile device sold or marketed by TracFone or any of its
affiliated or related entities, such as America Movil, bearing any
Registered TracFone Trademark (*TracFone Handsets”). Specifically, the
Defendants are enjoined from purchasing, selling, and/or shipping, directly
or indirectly, all models of TracFone Handsets, including Net10 products,
regardless of whether such devices are new or used, whether in or out of
their original packaging, or whether “locked,” *ynlocked,” “reflashed,” or
otherwise modified in any way by any person. This injunction applies to
all TracFone Handsets currently offered for sale by TracFone, or that may
be offered for sale in the future, as listed and updated from time to time on
TracFone's websitcs, hitp:/tracfone.com/activation_pick_brand jsp and

wvrw.net10.com, including without limitation the following TracFone
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Handsets:
Motorola W370 . Nokia 2126 LG 3280
Motorola C261 Nokia 21261 LG CG225
Motorola C139 Nokia 2600 LG 1500
Motorola V176 Nokia 1100
Motorola V170 Nokia 1112
Motorolz V171 Nokia 1600
Motorola C155 Nokia 2285
Motorola C343

b. reflashing and/or unlocking of any TracFone Handset;

c. accessing, altering, erasing, tampering with, deleting or otherwise
disabling TracFone's proprietary prepaid cellular software contained
within any and all models of TracFone Handsets;

d. supplying TracFone Handsets to or facilitating or in any way assisting
other persons or entities who Defendants know or should know arc

" engaged in reflashing and/or unlocking TracFone Handsets and/or
hacking, altering, erasing, tampering with, deleting or otherwise disabling
the software installed in TracFone Handsets;

e. supplying TracFone Handsets to, or facilitating or assisting, in any way,
other persons or eptities who Defendants know or should know are -
engaged in any of the acts -prohibitcd under this permanent injunction
including, without limitation, the buying , selling and/or shipping of
locked or unlocked TracFone Handsets; and

f. knowingly using the Registered ngFone Trademarks or any other
trademark owned or used by TracFone now or in the future, without
TracFone's prior written authorization.

10. The purchase, sale, or shipment of any TracFone Handsets without TracFone's
pﬁor written consent within and/or outside of the continental United States is and shall be
deemed a presmpﬁvc violation of this permanent injunction.

11. The last known address of Defendant GasRav is 3218 Commander Drive.
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12. The last known address of Defendant Bob Ali is 974 Mallard Drive, Coppell,
TX 75019. |

13. The last known address of Defendant Shahnawaz Ali is 974 Mallard Drive,
Coppell, TX 75019.

14. The address of Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc. is 9700 NW 112th Avenue,
Medley, FL 33178.

15. Defendants waive tb&r right to appeal from the entry of this Final Judgment.

16. The Court retains jurisdiction over this matter and the parties to this action in -
order to punish any violation of the terms of this Permanent Ixjunétion by a finding of
contempt and a payment of damages to TracFone Wireless, Inc. in an amount of not less
than $5,000 for each TracFone Handset that a Defendant is found to have purchased, sold,
unlocked or sh.ippcd in violation of this injunction.

17. The prevailing party in any proceeding to enforce compliance with the terms
of this Pcznanc uncuon shall be eptitled to an award of its attorneys’ fees and costs.

Case <

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers at the James Lawrence King

Federal Justice Byilding and United States Courthouse in Miami, Florida on this _ZiLday

“of 4

[ , 2007. -
//W %m«

ONORABLE JAMES LAWREN G
D STATES DISTRICT JUDGE .

Copies furnished to:

James B. Baldinger, Counsel for TracFone Wireless
Janet T. Munn, Counsel for Defendants

Molly Buck Richard, Counsel for Defendants
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brought action alieging that resellers unlawfuly
ditabled itx copyriphtcd and proprictary sofiware
instalied in phoncs and resold them s pew vader
provider’s tedemarks for unenthorized we outside
of s sysiem. Provider moved for permanent
injunction.

Holding: The Distrit Court, O. Kendall Sharp,
J. teld thai rescllers’ actions 4id not fal) within
exception to Digital Millennium Copyright Ast
{DMCA).

Motion granted.
West Heatdnolcs

Copyrights and Intelicctusl Property =613
99%61.3 Mot Cied Cases

Remeflers' actions i disabling prepaid  wirless
lelephone  provider's copyriphted and proprictary
sofware instalied in and reselling them as
new for vnauthorized wse outside of s system dud
not fall within cxccption 1o Digital Millenninm
Copyright Act {DMCA) for compuier progrms in

form of firmware to chable wireless lelephone
handsets  to  commect W wireless selephone
communication network, where resclien neiocked
providert handscu for purpose of recelling those
hudsusfupmmudnoll’or»\:pwpmof
lawfully cosnscting  to wireless  iclephone
communication network. 17 US.C.A. § 120 N
C.F.R. § 201.40(b)

Trademarks C=1800
387Tx 1800 Most Cited Cases
TracFone.

v]1236 Christopher Mack Paolial, Carlion Fislds,
PA. Omasdo, FL, James Blaker Baldinper,
Carlion Fields, P.A., West Palm Beach, FL, Sicven

). Brotie. Coriton Fields, PA. Miami AL lor
Plaintilt.

Ryar Maurice Dixon, Douglasville. CA, Pro st.
Tracy Nicols Dixon, Douglesville, GA, Pro se.’
Lost inthe 30'S, LLC, D_w;hwil\a. GA, Pro sz

FINAL JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT
INJUNCTION AGAINST DEFENDANTS RYAN
MAURICE DIXON,

TRACY NICOLE DIXON AND LOST IN THE
30°'S LLC

G. KENDALL SHARP, District Judge.

ev]  Pliniff, TrcFone  Wirless,  Inc
(“TratFonc™), brovght the sbove-captionsd lawsuil
agxinet Defendants, Ryan Maurice Dixon &z
Demick Johmton »KA Demick Johazun wkn
Demick Jonzum. individually and db/a PIPHY
Produciions and Give-A-Gifi-Busker, Traty Nicole
Dixon, individually and dava PIPRY Productions
snd Give-A-Gift-Basket; and Lost in the BO', LLC
s Georgia limited Sisbility company {collectively the
*Delendants™), alleging  that Defendantc are
eapaged in two onlawful schemes that have ciused

© 2007 Thomson/West. No Claim to Orip. U.S. Govi. Worke
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substentind harm 10 TracFone xnd 1o conremeT
genenlly.

*1237 TrcFone afleges Defendants’ fisst scheme

{the “Bulk Resale Scheme™  Involees  the

unavthorized and vntrwfol bulk pwchese and fesale
of TrcFone  prepeid  windkess lelephones
(CTracFone  Prepaid  Phones™ or  “Pronas®),
unsothorzed and unlawful compaer umlocking of
TimcFone Propeid Phones, aherstioo of TracFonc's
copyrighted and proprictary soltware compuiss
code instalied in the Phones, end ultimme sale of
tounierieited Phones o nasuspecting end uscrs for

profit.

TracFont allepes Defendants perpaxrmic the, Bult
_Rerale Scheme by acquiring bulk guasntities of
TracFone Prepaid Phoses from rendl siores such e
Wal-Mart, Tarpst o Sam's Club, and by soficiting
others o purchase TracFone Prepaid Phones in bulk
for the benzft of Defendants. TracFone allepes
Defcndanis acguire the TracFone Prepaid Phones
with the actial or constructive knowledge and intent
thet the Phones will pot be activaied foc use on the
TeacFose preprid wircless network and thal the
Phones will be compmer-hacked. TracFone allepes
the purpose of this hacking, known as “refashing”
or “unlocking,” is 10 ense, remave andfor disable
TracFones copyrighicd and proprictary sofiwarc
instelled in the Phones, which enables the uss of the
TracFose  Prcpaid  Phoness  exchusively  on
TncFone's prepaid  wirsless  system. ToacFone
ulleges the refleshed Phones are then trafficked and
resold, at 3 premium, ss new mider TracFone's
trademarks for unauthorized use outside of the
TracFooe prepuid wirsless system. -

TrscFone allepes  Defendants’ other scheme (the
“Freudulent Alrtime Scheme™},  provides
Defendants with another mechanism for unlawfully
profiting from their bulk scguisition of TracFone
Prepaid  FPhones by  exploiting TracFone's
“Refer-A-Fricnd”  promotion (the  “Promotioa’).
TracFope afleget Defendants recruit customens for
their Frrudulem Ainime Schome via their websites,
www, trocfoncusa.com and
www, lostinthe8Dr/active_iratfones.him. which
contain wnsuthorized reproductions of the TracFone

trademerks wnd logo, and deccives consumers into
belicvinp the scheme ic legitimae and suthorizad by
TracFone,  TracFone alleges Defendsnts
frandulently: obiin free aktime from TracFone
ihrough the Promotion them sell the sinime to
unsuspecting third pamies for 2 profiL

TracFone essericd clwims sgainst the Defendants
for federa! mademack infrinpement undzer 15 US.C.
§ 1114; copyright infringement under 17 US.C. §
106; circumveation of wzhmological messvres that
control  access 10 proprictary  software  and
mafficking in services thal circcumvenl technological .
mezsures prowecung propricury sofiware under |7
U.S.C. § 1201, er. 35eq. ax h violation of the Digha}
Millennivra At ("DMCA"), s smended,
15 US.C. § 1051, e seq.; mademwk viblation for
domain nume misnsz; {edera) unfair competition
under 15 US.C. § 1125; wonions interference with
business relotionships and prospective advamages
business relationthips between' TracFone amd iis
manofschrers  unfuir  competition  and  fake
sdvertising under § S01.204, Pa. Stals imjury 1o
busincss repuiation wnd ditution of marks under §
49S.1S1. Fl. Swi; frand: civil contpinacy: and
unjust ensichmeat. Defcndants sdmit their Rabiliry
poder the claims assened by TracFone. The Count,
having considercd the Complaint, Declerations and
Exhiblts, Mcmorndum of Law, and forther
evidence tubmitted therswith by TracFone and
Defendants, sccordingly heseby:

**2 ORDERS, ADJUDGES and DECREES that:

[. This Coun has jurisdiction over afl the panics
and all of the clsims soi forth in TracFonme’s
Comphin.

*1238 2. The Count finds that TracFone owns all
ght, fifle, and interest in and 1o Inconicrisble
United Stwes  Trademark  Registration  No.
2114,692, issued November 1B, 1997, for
TracFone awnd  Incostestable  United  Swles
Trdemark  Registtion  Na.  2,71,017,  issved
Sepiember 9, 2003, for TracFone (the “TracFone
Trademarks™). The TracFons Trademarks we valid,
incomesiable, distinctive, protecnble, lamous, have
acqoired secondery meaming snd are associmed

© 2007 ThomsowWest. No Claim 10 Orig. U.S. Gov. Work.
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exchusively with TracFore.

1. TracFone owns ol right, title sod interest 1o the
domain name www, lragfone.com.

4. The Court finds that the conduct, although
unimentional, alieged by TracFone i the Complaint
violates the followiag suiutes: fedenl trademark
nfringement onder IS USC § 1114: copyripht
infringement under 17 U.5.C. § 106; circumvention
of technological messures that control secess to
proprictary software and tafficking in services thal
circumvent  technological  sheRsurss protecting
proprictary software mder 17 USC. § 1201, ev
seq. az a viotarion of e Dipital Miiermiom
Copyright Act "DMCA™, B amended, 15 USC. |
1051, et seq. tmademark violton for domain
name misuse: fcderal unfair competition under 15
USC. § 1125 unfak¥ competition and [lalse
dvenising under § 501.204. Fla. Swut. The Court
further finds that Delendanis’ conduel, sheged in the
Cosmplaint, constitutes tortious  interference with
TracFone’s busincss felationships and prospettive
advantages  businest relstionships  between
TracFone and its manufactores, frand, civil
conspincy, end unjust enrichment.

5. The Coun findt Deftndants’ conduct,
independentty, in both the Bult Resale Scheme and
the Fracdulent Adnime Scheme, has caused
substuniial harm to TrcFone and the public
interest, and will continue to cause substential harm
10 TracFone and the public interest. unless enjoined.
Consequently, TracFone is entitied 1 injunclive
relicf on the claims sct forth in its ComplainL

6. On November 27, 2006, the Lbnsian of

Congress, vpon the recommendation of the Repister

of Copyrights, issued » Final Rule sciiing forth siz

(6) chses of copyrighted works that xre crempt

from the provisions of the DMCA. including:
Computer progrzms in the form of firnwwe that
enable wireless ielephone handsets o conncct 10
a wircless iclcphone  comemuRication network,
when circumvention is accomplished for the sodc
purpose ol lawfully connocting 1o & wirtless
Iciephone communication network.

31 Fed.Rep. 6B472 (Nov. 27.2006) (amending 37

Filed 07/06/20@7 . Pz 350f36
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CF.R. § 201.4D(b). The Coost finds thal thit hew

tom docs hot absoive the Defoadants of
Viability fot their viplations of the DMCA s allcped
i.CmBIEMNofTu:Fnc';Cnup\:inL
becspse the Defensanis’ conduct as alleged in this
cxse does not come within the scope of the new
sxsmption. The Defondueats’ miscondort  and
involvement ia salocking TracFons handscls was
I‘ortheputpmufmumnghuhmduu for 2
polit, and nee “for the sole purpose of lawfully
connecting 1o 3 wircless tzlcphont communication
network.” Because the czcmplion docs aot apply 1o
the conduct alleged in this cxse, tere i no need for
thommmhnﬁﬁtyofﬁcexmpﬁmm
the circumstances swyoending iis nactcnt.

«*3 7, Final judpment is hereby entered apaingt the
Defendants, Ryss Maurice Dizon. Tracy Hicole
Dizon. snd Lon in the 0%, LLC, and in favor of
the Plaintifl, TrecFone Wireless, Inc., on alt of the
tinirns sef forth in TracFone’s Complainl

5. Defendans, and tsch and afl of their
representatives, ABERLS, assigns, employees, #1239
independent  CORURCION, velativer,  associstes,
servants snd any and 1l persons and entities in
sctive comcert and purticipation with them who
reeeinnuieeoflhismdudhmbemdhucbym
PERMANENTLY ENJOINED from:
». purchasing snd/or selling, excep for their own
personal 2. sy wirtlers mobile phone thet they
kmow or should Enow beans wny TracFone
Trademark, any other rademark owned or used
by TrcFone, of amy other model of wirslest
mobile phone sold of mukaed by TrmcFone
(TracFone  Hundsets®) Specifically, the
Defendants ars cnjoined from purchasing andlor
selling all models of TracFome Handsets currently
offered for sale by TracFone, or that may be
offered for sale in the future, o listed and
updmicd regularly on huptt
tmd’unr.coﬂnﬂivuﬁm_plck_brunijxy. )
TracFone's websiie, including without limiation
the foliowing celiular phone handtets:
Notia 1100
Nokia 1112
Notis 1221
Nokla 2126

© 2007 Thomson/West. No Claim 1o Orig. US. Govt Works.
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Nokia 2285

Nokia 2600

Nokis 261D

Nokia 3390

Nokia 5100

Nokis 252 (Analop)

Nokia 282 (Amiog)

Nokis 218 (Ansiop)

Motorols Y170

Motorols V176

Motoroh C139

Mowrols C155

Motorola C261

Mpiorols C343

Mowroh V6D

Motorola 12D

Moloroha Ballina

LG 3280

LG 180

LG Ci300

LG C1500

LG CG225

Uniden 2000

Uniden Minicel

StarTrac

Radio Shack

MicroTac

Profile

Lifestyle SO0 )

b. reflashing and/or walocking of any TracFone
Handse

e. sccessing, altering. erysing. wmpering with,
deleting  or  otherwise  disabling TracFene's
propriciary prepeld colivlar software contained
within any and al} models of TracFone Handsets;

d. Pacililating or in any wiy sisting other
persons or estities who Defcndanis know or
chould know are engeged in reflshing and/oc
unlocking TracFone Handsets andfor hacking,
ahering, cmsing. wmpering with, deleting or
otherwisz dizabling the software installed in
TracFone Handsets:

c. reselling. or panicipating in or faciliteting the
resuie by others, of TracFone zinime  units,
ainime cards, or prepaid dinime minutes;

f. faciliming or in any wry assining  other
person: or cntilics who Defendants know  or
should know are enpaged in amy of the am

prohibiicd usdzr  this  permuneat injunction
inciuding, without Limitatios, the buying andlor
seliing of onlocked TracFone Handsetn :

g. using of operting websiies with a8 domain
mames  wwwiracfoneesa.com  *1240 or which
vses "tracfones " of “tracfone ;) and

h tnowingly using the TracFone Trademusks or
sny other tndemark owned of used by TeacFone,
or thal i Hkely o cause conlusiom with
TracFone's Trademarks. without TracFone’s prior

ocizath

wnien

sog 5. Defendantt and TracFone waive their right
1o appex] from the entry of this Final Judgmest.

10. The Count retadns jurisdiction over this matier
uﬂmcpmhbnisniu’nuduwpuniﬂ\ Ky
violation of the terms of this Permanent Injuaction
by & finding of comtcmpl and 3 pryment of dumages
1o TracFone Wiscless, Ine. in an gmount of nof less
than $5.000 for each TracFone Handset that
Defendants are found 1o have porchased, sold, or
wnlocked in violation of thit injunciion,

1. The prewuiling purty in any proceeding 1o
enlorce  compliace  with the lerms of this
Permenent Injunctioe skall be enticled o an sward
of its atormeys’ feet and cotit.

475 F.Supp.2d 1236, 2007 WL 570540 (M.D.F).
20 P L Weekly Fed D 506
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Case 1:07-cv-21 242-JLK  Document 27 Entered on FLSD Docket 08/30/2007

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASENO.07 21242-CIV -KING/GARBER

TRACEONE WIRELESS, INC.
a Florida corparation,

Plaintiffs,
vS.

PHONES PHONES, INC., 8 Texas
Corporation, WIRELESS HOUSING,
INC., a Texas corporation, ASPAC, INC.,
a Texas corporation, MURAD MEHDI
VELAN], individually, AMIN

SAYANL, a/k/a Naushad Sayani,
{ndividually, and JOHN DOES NOS.

} through 20, individually,

Defendants.
/

FINAL JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT INJUNCTION -

Page 1 of 9

Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc. ¢TracFong), brought the above-captioned lawsuit

against Defendants, Phones N Phones, Inc., 2 Texas corporation {Phones$

"), Wircless Universe,

inc., a Texas corporation (Wireless), Aspac, Inc., a Texas corporation (Aspac), Murad Mehdi

Velani, individually (Veland), Naushad Sayani, individually {Nashad) and Celina Sayani,

individually (Celind), and (conccdvely‘Defcndantﬁ’). asserting that Defendants are engaged in an

unlawful enterprise involving the acquisition, sale and counterfeiting of large quantitics of

TracFone prepaid wireless telephones (TracFone Prepaid Phoned® or ‘Phoned) that causes

substantial and irreparable harm to TracFone (the'Bulk Resale Venturé).

Defendants perpetrate the Bulk Resale Venture by acquiring bulk quantities of Trac

Prepaid Phones from retail stores such as Wal-Mant, Target or S

MIA#2634213.1

Fone

am’s Club, and by soliciting




tam—

Case 1:07-cv-21242-JLK Document 27 Entered on FLSD Docket 08/50/2007 Page 20of 9
_others to purchase TracFone Prepaid Phones in bulk for the benefit of Defendants. TracFone

ascerts that Defendants acquire the TracFope Prepaid Phones with the actual or consungﬁvc
knowledge and intent that the Phones will not be activated for use on the TracFone prepaid
wireless network and that the Phones will be computer-hacked. The purpose of this hacking,
known zs‘feflashing’ or‘inlocking;’is to erase, remove end/or diszble TracFone's copyrighted and
proprietary software installed in the Phones (TracFone Proprietary Softward), which enables the
use of the TracFone Prepaid Phones exclusively on TracFones prepaid wireless system.
TracFone asserts that the reflashed Phones are then trafficked and resold overseas, at a preruium, '

as new.undcr TracFone's trademarks for unauthorized use outside of the TracFope prepaid

wireless system.

TracFone Prepaid Phones are sold subject to terms and conditions (Terms and
Condition$) w}-ﬁch conspichously restrict and limit the sale and use of TracFone Prepaid Phones.
These Terms and Conditions are set forth in printed inserts that are inclnded in the packaging
with every TracFone Phone, and are also available to the public on TracFone’s website. The
Terms and Conditions are 2lso referenced in printed warnings that are placed on the outside of
the retail packaging of the Phones. The Terms and Conditions and language on the packaging
constitute a valid binding contract.

Pursuant to the Terms and Conditions and the langnage on the packeging, purchasers of -
TracFone Prepaid Phones agree. (a) to use their Phones only in conj petion with TracFones
prepaid wirtless service, (b) not to tamper with or alter TracFone Prepaid Phones or the Phones
software, enter unauthorized PIN numbeérs in the Phopes, engage in any other unauthorized or
illegal use of the Phones or the TracFone service, or assist others in sach acts, and (c) not to

export any TracFone Prepaid Phones outside of the United States.

MIAR2634213.1




Case 1:07-cv-21242-JLK Document 27 Entered on FLSD Docket 08/00/2007 Page 30f9
‘ As a result of the Bulk Resale Venture, TracFope has asserted claims against Defendants
for breach of contract; federal trademark infringement upder 15 USC. § 1114; copyright
infringement under Tite 17 of the United States Code; circamvention of tschnological measures
that control access to proprictary software and trafficking in services that circomvent
technological measures protecting proprietary software under 17 US.C. § 1201, et. seq. as 2
violation of the Digital Millenninm Copyright Act (DMCKY, mfeir competition under the
deemm‘k Act of 1946, as amended, 15 US.C. § 1051, et seq.; tortions interference with.
business relationships and prospective advantages business relationships between TracFone and
its manufacturers; unfair competition and false advertising under §§ 501.204 and 501.211, Fla.
Stat.; harm to TracFone's goodwill and reputation under § 495.151, Fla. Stat., civil conspiracy;
and unjust enrichment. Defendants chd an Answer, denying TracFones allegations. The Court,
ha;riug reviewed the Complaint and file and being otherwise duly advised in the premises, it is
hereby

ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECﬁEED that

1. This Court has jurisdiction over all the parties and all of the claims set forth in
TracFone's complaint.

5. The Court finds that TracFone owns all right, title, and interest in and to Incontestable
United States Trademark Registration No. 2,114,692, issved November 18, 1997, for TracFone,
United States Trademnark Registration No. 2,761,017, issued Septermber 9, 2003, for TracFone
and United States Trademark Registration No. 3,118,250 for Net 10, issued July 18, 2006
(collectively the “Registered TracFone Trademarks). The Registered TracFone Trademarks are
valid, distinctive, protectable, famous, have acquired secondary meaning and are associated

exclusively with TracFone. The Court finds that the trademark registered under Registration No.

MIA#2634213.4




Case 1:07¢v-21242-JLK  Document 27  Entered on FLSD Docket 0tx00/2007 Page 4 of 9
2,114,692 is incontestable, The Court further finds that TracFone holds a valid and enforceable
copyright on the TracFone Proprietary Software.

3. The Court finds that the Terms and Conditions and the langpage on the packaging -
constitutz a valid binding contract enforceable against Defendants. The Court finds that (a)
facilitating others to use TracFone Prepaid Phoues in conjunction with service providers other
than TracFone, (b) tampering with or altering TracFone Prepaid Phones or the Phones software,
entering unauthorized PIN numbers in the Phones for purposes of unlocking or reflashing the
Phones, or facilitating others in such acts, and/or (¢) exporting Trachnc Prepaid Phones outside
of the United States, respc'ctivcly, constitute independent breaches of contract for which
TracFone is entitled to relief.

4. The Court finds that the conduct alleged in the complaint, if proven would violate the
following stamtes: 1S U.S.C. § 1114 (trademark infringement); cppyright infringement under
Title 17 of the Unitzd States Code; 17 U.S.C. § 1201 (circumvention of technological measures
that control access to proprietary software under the DMCA and trafficking in services that
circumvent technological measures protecting copyrighted software); 15 US.C. § 1125 (unfair
competition); unfair competition and false advertising under §§ 501.204 and 501.211, Fla. Stat;
and harm to TracFones goodwill and reputation under §1495.151, Fla. The Court further finds
that the conduct alleged in the complaint, if proven, would constitute tortious interference with
TracFone's advantageous business relationéhip. civil conspiracy, and unjust enrichment, and has
cansed substantial and irreparable harm to TracFone, and would continue to cause substantial

and irreparable harm to TracFone unless enjoined,

MIAE2634213.1
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5. On November 27, 2006, the Librarian of Congress, upon the recommendation of the
Register of Copyrights, issued a Final Rule setting forth six (6) classes of copyrighted works that
are exempt from the provisions of the DMCA, including:
Computer programs in the form of firmware that enzble wircless telephone

bandsets to comnect to a wireless telephone communication network, whed

circunvention. is accomplished for the sole purpose of lawfully connecting t0 2
wireless telephone communication network. :

71 Fed. Reg. 68472 (Nov. 27, 2006) (amending 37 CFR. § 201.40(b)). The Court finds that this
new exemption does not absolve the Defendants of liability for &nch violations of the DMCA as
alleged in Counts IV and V of TracFone's complaint, because the Defendants’ conduct as alleged
in this case does not come within the scope of the new exemption. ‘The Defendants purchase and
resale of the TracFone handsets was for the purp.ose of reselling those handsets for a profit, and
not“for the sole purpose of lawfully conpecting to a wirgless telephone communication petwork”’
Becanse the exemption does not apply to the conduct alleged in this case, there is no need for the
Court to address the validity of the exemption or the circumstances surrounding its enactment.

6. TracFope has suffered damages, including loss of goodwill and damage O its
reputation, as a result of the Defendants conduct. TracFone is entitled to injunctive relief on the
claims set forth in the complaint. |

7. Final judgment is hereby entered against the Defendants, Phones N Pi\ones. Inc., a
Texas corporation, Wire)c-ss- Universe, Inc., a Texas corporation, Aspac, Inc., a Texas
corporation, Murad Mehdi Velani, individnally, Naushad Sayani, individually and Celina Sayani,
individually (col]cctivcly‘Dcfcndand'), and in favor of the Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc., on
all of the claims set forth in TracFones complaint.

R Defendants, and each and all of their representatives, agents, employecs, independent

contractors, servants and any and all persons and cntities, including the Defendants relatives and

Mla#2634213.1
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associates, in active concert and participation with them, who receive notice of this order, shall
be and hereby are PﬁRMANMLY ENJOINED from:

a. Purchasing, selling and/or shipping any wireless mobile phone that they know or
shonld ¥now bears any Registered TracFone Trademark, any other trademark
owned by TracFone, of any other model of wireless mobxlc device sold or
marketed by TracFone or any of its affiliated or rclated entities, such as America
Movil, bearing any Registered TracFone Trademark (TracFone Handsets)
Specifically, the Defendants are enjoined from purchasing, selling and/or
shipping, directly or indirectly, all models of TracFone Handsets, inclu;ﬁng Net
10 products, regardless of whether such devices are new or nsed, whether in or
out of their original packaging, or whether “ocked;’ ‘mlocked;’ ‘feflashed;’ or
otherwise modiﬁéd in any way by any pcrsb,n. This injunction applies to all |
TracFone Handsets currently offered for sale by TracFone, or that may be offered
for sale in the futare, as listed and updated from time to Gme on TracFones
websites, http://tracfone.com/activation _pick_brandjsp and www.netl0.com,

including without limitation the following TracFone Handsets::

Motorola W370 Nokia 2126 LG 3280
Motorola C261 . Nokia 2126i LG CG225
Motorola C139 Nokia 2600 LG 1500
Motorola V176 Nokia 1100

Motorola V170 Nokia 1112

Motorola V171 Nokia 1600

Motorola C155 Nokia 2285

Motorola C343

b. reflashing and/or unlocking of any TracFone Handset;

MIAR2634213.]
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c. accessing, altering, erasing, tampering with, deleting or otherwise disabling
TracFone's proprietary prepaid cellular software contained within any and all
models of TracFone Handsets;

d. supplying TracFone Handsets o or facilitating or in any way assisting other
persons or entities who Defendants know or should kmow arc engaged in

" reflashing and/or unlocking TracFone Handscts and/or hacking, altering, erasing,
tampering with, deleting or otherwise disaﬁ\ing the software installed in TracFone
Handsets; .

e. supplying TracFone Handsets to, or facilitating or assisting, in any way, other
persons or entities who Defcndﬁuts Xnow or should know are engaged in any of
the acts prohibited under this permanent injunction including, without limitation,
the buying , selling and/or shipping of locked or unlocked TracFone Handsets;
and

f. ¥mowingly using the Registered TracFone Trademarks or any other trademark
owned or used by TracFone now or in the future, without TracFone's prior written
authorization.

9. The shipment of any TracFone Handsets within and/or outside of the continental
United States is and shall be deemed a presumptive violation of this permanent injunction.
10. The last known address of Defendant Phones N Phones, Inc 4325 Rice Lane,

Carrollton, TX 75010.

11. The last known address of Defendant Wireless Universe, Inc. 4325 Rice Lane,
Carrollton, TX 75010.

MIAN2634213.1




Case 1:07-cv-21242~JLK Document 27 Entered on FLSD Docket 08/50/2007 Page 809

12. The last known address of Defendant Aspac, Inc. is 1620 N. 1-30, Suite 308,
Carroliton, TX 75006.

13. The last known address of Defendant Murad Mehdi Velani is 1220 Indian Run Drive,
Carrollton, TX 75010.

14. The last known address of Defendant Nanshad Sayani is 4325 Rice Lane, Carrollton,
TX 75010.

15. The last known address of Defendant Celina Sayani is 4325 Rice Lane, Carrollton,
TX 75010.

16. The address of Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc., is 8390 NW 25® Street, Miami, FL
33122.

17. Defendants waive their right to appeal from the entry of this Final Judgment. .

18. The Court retains jurisdiction over this matter and the parties to this action in order to
punish any violation of the terms of this Permanent Injunction by a finding of contempt and a
payment of damages to TracFone Wireless, Inc. in an amount of not Jess than $5,000 for each
TracFone Handset that a Defendant is found to have purchased, sold, unlocked or shipped in
violation of this injunction.

19. The prevailing party in any proceeding to enforce compliance with the terms of this

Permanent Injunction shall be entitled to an award of its attorneys fees and costs.

DONE AND ORDERED in Dallas, Texas, this 2. day of %__ 2007.

Asg
States District Judge T]

Copies furnished to:

Jamnes B. Baldinger, Counsel for TracFone Wireless
Janet T. Munn, Counsel for Defendants
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Molly Buck Richard, Counsel for Defendants
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
ORLANDO DIVISION

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC.,
Plaintiff,

CASE NO.: 6:06-CV-01257-ORL-18-IGG
vs.

CLINTON RIEDEMAN d/b/a LARRY'S CELL,
LAWRENCE RIEDEMAN d/b/a LARRY'S CELL.
and ROBIN KETCHAM d/b/a LARRY'S CELL,

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT INJUNCTION AGAINST
' DEFENDANT CLINTON RIEDEMAN

Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc. (“TracFone™), brought the above-captioned
lawsuit against Defendant, Clinton Riedeman d/b/a Larry's Cell. (“Defendant”), asserting that
Defendant was engaged in an unlawful enterprise that involves the acquisition, sale and
counterfeiting of large quantities of TracFone prepaid wireless telephones (“TracFore Prepaid
Phones” or “Phones™) purchased ffom various retail outlets such as Wal-Mart, Target and Sam’s
Club, the solicitation and payment of others 1o bulk purchase TracFone Prepaid Pl;oncs for
Defendant's benefit, computer hacking and erasing or otherwise disabling the prepaid software
installed in the TracFone Pﬁpaid Phones essential for consumers to access TracFone’s prepaid
wireless network, or reselling the Phones to others who disable the software, and ultimately sell
the counterfeit Phones as new under incontestable TracFone trademarks for the unauthorized use

outside of the TracFone prepaid wircless system.

TracFone asserted claims against the Defendant for circumvention of technological

MIAZ2835272.2
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measures that conirol access to proprietary software and trafficking in services that circumvent
technological measures protecting proprietary software under 17 US.C. § 1201, et seq. as a
violation of the Digital Milleanium Copyright Act (“DMCA"™), federal trademark mfnngcmcnt
and unfair competition under the Trademark Act of 1946, as amended, 15 US.C. §1051, er. seq..
tortious interference with business relationships and prospective advantages business
relationships between TracFone and its manufacturers, unfair competition and deccptive trade
practices under § 501.204, Fla. Stat, and injury to business reputation and dilution of marks
undef § 495.151, Fla. Stat. On September 18, 2006, the Court entered a Default against all of the
Defendants, including Defendant, Clinton Riedeman. Accordingly, it is hereby. |
ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that:

1. This Court has jurisdiction over all the parties and all of the claims set forth in

TracFene’s complaint.

2. The Court finds that TracFone owns all right, title, and interest in and to
Incontestable United States Trademark Registration No. 2,114.692. issued November 18, 1997,
for TracFone and Incontestable United States Trademark Registration No. 2,716,017, issued
September 9, 2003, for TracFone (the “TracFone Trademarks™). The TracFone Trademarks are
valid, incontestable, distinctive, protectable, famous, have acquired secondary meaning and are
associated exclusively with TracFone. | |

3. The Court finds that the Defendant has violated the following statutes: 17 U.S.C.
§ 1201 (circumvention of technological measures that control access to proprietary software

"under the DMCA and trafficking in services that circumvent technological measures protecting
copyrighted software), 15 US.C. § 1114 (trademark infringemeat). 15 U.S.C. § 1125 (unfair

- competition), §§ 501.204 and 501.211, Fla. Stat. (unfair competition. deceptive trade practices
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and false advertising) and § 495.151, Fla. Stat. (injury to business reputation and dilution of
trademarks). The Court further ﬁnds that Defendant's conduct. alleged in the comp}amt,
constitutes tortuous interference with TracFope’s advantageous business relationship and has
cavsed substantial harm to TracFone, and will continue to canse substantial harm to TracFone
unless enjoined. |

4, On November 27, 2006, the Librarian of Congress, upon the recommendation of
the Register of Cépyrights. issued a Final Rule setting forth six (6) classes of copyrighted works
that are exempt from the provisions of the DMCA. including:

Computer programs in the form of firmware that enable wircless telephone
handsefs 1o connect o a wireless telephone communication network, when
circumvention is accomplished for the sole purpose of lawfully connecting to 2
wireless telephone communication network-
71 Fed. Reg. 63472 (Nov. 27. 2006) (amending 37 C.F.R- § 201.40(5))- The Court finds that this
new exemption does pot absotve the Defendant of Liability for his violations of the DMCA as
alleged in Counts 1 through ITf of TracFone's complaint, because the Defendant’s conduct as
alleged in this case does not come within the scope of the new exemption. The Defendant’s
purchase and resale of the TracFone handsets was for the purpose of reselling those handsets for
a profit, and not “for the sole purpose of lawfully connpecting to a wireless ielephone
communication nctwork.” Because the exemption does not apply to the conduct alleged in this
case, there is no need for the Court to address the validity of the exemption or the circumstances

surrounding its enactment.

5. TracFone has suffered damages, including loss of goodwill and damage to its
reputation, as a result of the Defendant’s conduct. TracFone is entitled to injunctive relief and

damages on the claims set forth in the complaint.
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6.

Final judgment is hereby entered against the Defendant. Clinton Riedeman, and in

favor of the Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc., on all of the claims set forth in TracFone's

complaint.

7.

Defendant, Clinton Riedeman. and each and all of his representatives, agents,

employees, independent contractors, relatives, associates, servants and any and all persons and

entities in active concert and participation with them who receive notice of this order shall be and

hereby are PERMANENTLY ENJOINED from:

a. purchasing and/or selling any wireless mobile phone that they komow or should

know bears any TracFone Trademark, any other trademark owned or used by
TracFone, or any other model of wireless mobile phone sold or marketed by
TracFone (“TracFone Handsets™). Specifically, the Defendants are enjoined from
pu:chasmg and/or selling all models of TracFone Handsets currently oﬁ‘cred for
sale by TracFone. or that may be offered for sale in the future, as listed and
updated from time fo time on TracFone’s website,

http://tracfone.com/activation _piék__brand.jsp, including without Limitation the

following TracFone handsets:

Motorola W370 Nokia 2126 LG 3280
Motorola C261 Nokia 2126i LG CG225
Motorola C139 Nokia 2600 LG 1500
Motorola V176 . Nokia 1100

Motorola V170 Nokia 1112

Motorola V171 Nokia 1600

Motorola C155 Nokia 2285

Motorola C343

b. reflashing and/or unlocking of any TracFone Handset;
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c. accessing, altering, erasing, tampering with, deleting or otherwise disabling
TracFone’s proprietary prepaid cellular software contained within any and all
models of TracFone Handsets;

d. facilitating or in any way assisting other persons or entities who Defendants know
or should know are engaged in reflashing and/or unlocking TracFone Handsets
and/or hacking, altering, erasing, tampering with, deleting or otherwise disabling
the software installed in TracFone Handscts;

e. facilitating or in any way assisting other peﬁons or entities who Defendants know
or should know are engaged in any of the acts prohibited under this permanent
injunction including, without limitation, the buying and/or selling of unlocked
TracFone Handsets; and

f. knowingly using the TracFone Trademarks or any other trademark owned or used

by TracFone, or that is likely to cause confusion with TracFone's Trademarks.

without TracFone's prior written authorization.
B The last known address of Defendant Clinton Riedeman is 1722 West Acre Drive, .

St. Cloud, FL 34769.

9. The address of Plaintiff, TracFone Wireless, Inc., is 8390 NW 25® Street, Miami,
FL 33122.

10.  Defendant, Clinton Riedeman, and TracFone waive their right to appeal from the
entry of this Final Judgment.

11.  The Court retains jurisdiction over this matier and the parties 1o this action in
order to punish any violation of the terms of this Permanent Injunction by a finding of contempt

and a payment of damages to TracFone Wireless. Inc. in an amount of not less than $5,000 for
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each TracFone Hapdset that Defendant is found to have purchased, sold, or unlocked in

violation of this injunction.

12.  The prevailing party in any proceeding to cnfort.:c compliance with the terms of
this Permanent Injunction shall be entitled to an award of its attorneys” fees and costs.

13.  This case remains pending against Defendant Robin Kewcham and Defendant
Lawrence Riedeman, and the Court finds that there is no just reason for delay of the entry of
judgment against befcndam, Clinton Riedeman and therefore directs the Clerk to enter 5udgmcnt

as set forth herein. See Fed.R.Civ.P. 54(b).

DONE AND ORDERED in Orlando, Florida, this _éday of 5,,,)/ , 2007.

-

M.

The Hoporable G. Kendall Sharp
United States District Judge

Copies furnished to:

James B. Baldinger, Counsel for TracFone Wireless
Jeffrey Blan, Counsel for Defendant Robin Ketcham

Frank Killgore, Jr. and Alyson Innes, Counsel for Defendants Clinton Riedeman, Lawrence

Riedeman and Reidcor. Inc.
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERR DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
MIA

Case No, S-23270-CIV-Aliom g/ Tomoll

x
TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC.,

2 Florida corporation.
Plaintiff,
Y.

SOL WIRELESS GROUP. INC., CASE

s Florida corporation, CARLDS PING,
an individual, snd JORGE ROMERD,

an inGividual,
' Defendanis.
—X :
NAL PERMA O

Plaintiff TracPone Wireless, Inc. (" TracPone™), filed a Complaint on December 21,
2005 wseesting thal Defenduats Sol Wircless Group, toc- Carios Pino, and Jorge. Romem
(collectively “the Sol Wircless Defendants™) are purchesiog “TracFone prepaid wiscless
1elcpbones Trom retail siofes such w3 Wal-Mart Target or Sum's Club, hacking into and
erasing or dissbliog the TracFone proprictery prepaid software that epables copsumen (o
BCLESS TracFone's prepald u'r'u-ckss service, and then reselling the wirgless telepboncs as new
for use on other wireless carrien’ networks/sysicms. Based on that conduct, e Complaint
asserts clsims sgainst the Sol Wircless Defendants for [edzml tadcmark infringement and
anfait competition under the Trdemurk Act of 1946, a8 ﬁn:nd:d. 15US.C. § 105, ef 524

injury 10 business reputation and ditution of mark under Fla. St § 495.15) el seq.. unfair

PARDOD220




Case 4:07-cv-02206 Document1-7  Filed 07/08/2007 Page 3 0f 36 '

compettion and dccéptive \rade practices undes Fia Stat. § 501.2D4 el 529 circumvention of
(echaoipgicel measures that control accexs 1o proprietary FoRware under 17 US.C. § 1201 &8
s2q. trfficking in services tht cirumvent ischnological measures protecting proprietary
softoare under 17 USC. § 12D} et seq., loftions 'm;cd'crnc: with business relafionsbips aod
prospective advaniage, and twtions inererence with the business relationship between
TrcFone and Nokia Corponsion (Nekii™). On Jauary. 1. 2006, TracFone filed 3 motion
for prelisninary injuncion and expedied discovery with supponing declarations and exhibits
and accompanying memoranda of law, The o) Wireless Defendants have denied the
allegations of TracFone’s Complainl- This Court having considered the Complaint,

dcachrujﬁns and cxhibits, memorande of aw, and forther evidence submilted therewith, it is

hereby:

ORDERED, ADJUDGED. and DECREED that:

j.  This Courthes jurisdiction over all the partics and all of be claims for federal
rademark  infringement and unhir competition under the Trademuwk Act of 1946, 83
amended, 15USC. § 1051, ef seq., injury 1o business r;wulicm and dilution of mark under
Fir. Stat. § 495.151 el 5eg- unfsir competition xod decepiive trade practices undet Fla Stat.
§ 501.204 el 5eq.. circomvention of techoologica] measures that coptro) access to propriclery
software under 17 U.S.C. § 1201 ef seq-, mificking in services that circumvent technological
measures  protecting proprictary cofiware under 17 US.C. §1201 er scq, torious

interference with business relationships and prospective advaniage, and iortious interfzence

- with business relationship between TracFone and Nokir, axseried in the shove sction.
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2. Phintff owns & sight title, and interest in and o the wademuk
TRACFONE.

© 3 Defendunts and ey of their representatives, subsidiarics, related or affiliated

cotitics, agencs, scrvants, wod camployees, and any and al} persons zod eatitics in selive

concent and participation with them who receive notice of this order by personal sevice or -

otherwise, chall be and hereby wre p:msuenlly enjoined from:

i pumh:ﬂhg or selfing any wirtless mobile phonc besring the
TRACFONE rademark (“TracPone phonet™)

it. engaging in the aleration of unlocking of any TracFons phones,

i, (acilinbng orin any way assisiing oxhcs persoss of cnlities that the Sol
Wireless Defendants knew or should have known were cﬂglg:& in
aliering or unlocking any TracFone phose;

jv.  using either the TRACFONE trademark, or any othes mark that is
Jikely to cavse confusion therewith, withoul suthorization;

Y. misrepreseniing any used producis a5 new of in any way mfrmpng on
TcacFone's rademarks or misrepresenting thal TracFone warmznts the
ased md/os re-conditioned phones.

4, 'rhu Count bereby retains jurisdiction over this matter end the parties o this
action in ordet lo punish any violations of the teems of this Final Judgment and Permancht
Injunciion by 2 finding of contempt and 8 pryment of damages 1o TracPobe ip an amount of
pot fess than $5.000.00 for each wirtless phone that the Sol Wireless Defendants we found 10

have porchased, sold, or unlocked in violation of this injunction.
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11374

S. The prevadiing parly in 1ny procesding 10 enforce compliance with the iefms
and Permanent \njuactibn shall be entitled 1o x0 award of it

of this Final Judgment

miocaeys’ fees and costs incurred thereby.

DONE AND ORDERED in chambers a1 Mimni, Ploride, this 02 7 day of

fﬁﬁ@;—a 2006.
HON. CECILIA M. ALTGRAGA
Uslted States District Judge
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[N THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
MIAMI DIVISION

Casz No. 06-2001 I-CIV-ALTONAGNTumnﬂ'

x
NOKIA CORPORATION,
1 Finnish corporalion,

Plaintif,
Y.

SOL WIRELESS GROUP, INC.,

s Forida corporation, CARLOS PINO,
an individual. and JORGE ROMERO.
a0 inffividual,

Defendants. :
3
FINAL JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT INJUNCTION

PlaintifT Nokia Corporalion (“Nokia™), fileda Complzint on Junuery 4, 2006 esserling

that D:ta:dmts- Sol Wircless Group, Inc,, Culos Pino, and Jorge Romero (cobectively “the

_ Sol Wirtless Defendanis”) are purchasing NOKIA 1100 and 2600 TracFone prepsid wircless
. teiephones from retail stores such as Wial-Mary, Target or Sem's Club, hacking isto and
crusing or disabling the TracFone proprictary prepaid softwere that caables consumers 1o
access TracFope's preprid wireless cervice, and then resclling the wireless telephones u new
for use on other wircless camriers’ petworks/systems and, in some cases, re-peckaging the
phones in peckaging bearing the NOKIA trademurk that is inlended for use solely in the
Latin Americen market Bused on {hat conduet, the Complaint assests claims against the Sol
Wirtless Defendants for federal trademark infringement apd unfair competition under the
Trademurk Act of 1946, 18 smended, 15 U.S.C. § 1051, er seq., injury 1o busincss reputation

and ditution of mark under Fla. Stal. § 455.151 ef seq.. and unfsir competition and deceptive :
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vi.  misrcpreseoting any used products s new of in ny W2y infringing on
Nokia's tademwrks or misr:prs:nﬁng that Nokia warrants the used
andor re-conditioned phomes.

4. This Court hereby retaing jurisdiction over thit matter and the partics 1o this
action in ordsr to punich any violations of the terms of thit Final Judgment and Permanent
isjunction by 2 finding of contempt and 3 pryment of dumages 1o Nokia in an amount of not
Jess than $5.000.00 for each wircless phone that the Sot Wireless Defendants ase found to
have purchased, sold, or unlocked in violation of this irjunction.

s. The prevailing party in soy procezding to enforce compliance with the lerms
of thic Fins! Judgment and Permanent injunction shall be entitied 1o sn award of its
sitorneys' [ess and costs incurred thereby.

DONE AND ORDERED in chambers at Miami, Fieeida, this _/ day of
: 2006 '

'S S}

@Amﬂ@

HOMN. CECILIA M. ALTONAGA
Dnited States District Judge
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Case 1:07-cv-20428-PCH Document 24  Enfered on FLSD Docket 05/08/2007 Page 1018 |

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASENO.: o1-zoazy-cw-1~rucxjsmoinw

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC. &
Florids corporation,

Plaintiff,
Vs,

GREGG ISER, individually apd ¢/b/s L COMM
and LIGHTHOUSE COMMUNICATIONS; nd
GAl INC. d/b/a L COMM xnd LIGHTHOUSE
COMMUNICATIONS, = Oklthoma corporation,

Defendants.
/

M

THIS MATTER is before the Court upon the parties’ Joint Motion for Entry of Consent
Final Judgment and Permanent Injunction, filed Mey 1, 2007 (DE # 20). The Cowrt has
reviewed the motion and the record, end is duly advised in the premises.

PlaimilT, TracFone Wircless, Inc. (“TracFone™), 5390 NW 25th St, Miami, FL 33122
brought the .abovc—capﬁoncd |awsuit sgainst Defendants, Gregg Iser, individually, 104 E.
Huntsville Street, Broken Arrow, OK 74011 and GAl, Inc., Oklahomai corporation d/bie L
Comm and Lighthouss Communications, 5863 S. Gamet Rosd, Tulse, OK 74146-6812
(collestively the »Defendants™), elicging that Defendants are cngaged in an unlawful scheme that
has caused substantial harm 1o TracFone snd 10 CONSUMETS genenally.

TracFone allcg:é Defendanis’ scheme {the *Bulk Resale Scheme™) jnvolves the
unanthorized and untewful bulk purchase and resale of TrecFone propaid wircless telephones
(“TracFone Prepaid Phones™ or "Phones™), unauthorized and untawful computer unlocking of
TracFone Prepaid Phones, alteration of TracFone's copyrighted and proprictary software

computer code installed in the Phones, and ultimate sale of counterfeited Phones 10 unsuspecting
end vsers for profit

Papelof 6
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TrmcFone alleges Defendants pespetraic the Bulk Ressle Scheme by acquiring bufk
quantities of TracFone Prepaid Phones from retsil stores such 28 wal-Mart, Targel of Sum's
Club, and by soliciting others 1o purchese TeacFone Prepaid Phones in bulk for the bencfit of
Defendents. TrecFone alieges Defendants acquire the TracFone Prepsid Phones wilh the actual

or constructive knowledge and intent that

the Phones will not be activated for ust oo the
TracFone propaid wirpless nerwork and that

the Phones will be computer-hacked. TracFone

alleges the purpose of this hacking, known 25 *reflashing” of wyniocking,” is to CrRse, rEmove
and/or disable TracFone's copyrighted end proprictary software instelied in the Phones, which
enables the ust of the TracFone Prepaid Phoncs cxclusively on TracFone's prepeid wircless
syst&m. TracFone alleges the refiashed Phones grc then trafficked and resold, 8t 2 premium, &8
new under TracFone's trademnarks for unsuthorized use outside of the TracFone prepaid wircless

system.

TracFone esseried claims egainst the Defendants for federal trademerk infringement

snder 15 US.C. § 1114; copyright infri

ngement under 17 US.C. § 106; circumvention of

technological measures that contro) access 10 proprictary softwarc and trafficking in services that

circumvent \echnologicel measures protecting propriciary sofreare under 17 U.S.C. § 1201, e
seq. as & violation of the Digital Millennium Copyright Acl ('DMCA™), 28 amended, 15US.C. §

1051, e, seq.; federl unfair competition under 15 US.C. § 1125; tortious interference with

business relationships wod prospestive advantageous business relationships between TracFone

and jts manufacturers; unfair competition mnd

false advertising under § 501.204, Fla Stat,; injury

{o business rcpuiation and dilution of marks under § 495.151, Fla. Stat.; and fraud; civil
conspiracy and unjust enrichment. Defendants deny their liability under the claims esseried by

TracFone, bul to avoid the uncerizinties and cost of protracied litigation, Defendants agree to the

entry of this Consent Final Judgment and Permanent Injunction without any sdmission of

lisbility or wrongdoing with regard o the ¢

\aims asserted by TracFone in the Complaint.

The Court, having considered the Complaint, Declarations and Exhibits, Memorandum of
Law, Answer and Affirmetive Defenses, and further evidenee submitted therewith by TracFone

and Defendants, accordingly hereby:

ORDERS, ADJUDGES and DECREES that:

I,  This Coun has jurisdiction ovet 211 the partics and all of the claims

set forth in TracFone's Complaint.

Pagc 2of6
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Case 1:07-cv-20429—PCH Document 21 Entered on FLSD Docket 05/08/2007 Page 3oib

2 The Cout finds that TracFone owes 21 right, titie, and inferest in
gnd 1o Incontestable United States Trademark Registration Nb. 2,114,692, issuzd
November 18, 1997, for TrecFone and Incontestable United Stales Tredernsrk
Registration No. 2,761,017, issoed September g, 2003, for TracFone {the
“TracFone Trademerks™). The TracFone Trademarks &It valid, incomtestable,
distinetive, protecizble, funous, have acquired secondary meaning and wre
associated exclusively with TracFone.

3. The Court finds thzl the conduct alleged by TracFone in the
Complainy, if proven would violate the following statulcs: federa) trademark
infringement under 15USC. § 1114 copyright infringement under 17Us.C §
106; circumvention of technological measures {hat control access 10 propriciery
software snd trafficking in sexvices that circumvent techmological measures
protecting proprictary softwers under 17 USC. § 1201, a1 569 85 2 violation of
he Digita) Millennium Copyright Act (“DMCA"), as smended, 15 USC §105Y,
ei. seq.; fodcral unfair competition under 15 USC. § 1125 unfair competition
pnd false advertising under § 501.204, Fle. Stal. The Court further finds that the
alieged conduct wonld constitute tortious interference with TracFone's business
relationships and prospective sdvantageous busipess relationships  between
TracFone and its manufscturcss, fravd, civil conspiracy, and unjust enrichment.

4. The Court finds that (he allcged conduct in the Bulk Resale
Scheme has, independently, causcd substantiel harm to TrecFone &nd the public
interest, and will continue 1o CBUSS substantial harm io TracFone and the public
interest, unless enjoined. Consequently, end because Defendants have consented,
TracFone is entitled 10 injunctive reticf on the claims sct forth in its Complaint.

5. On November 27, 2006, the Librarian of Congress, upon the
recommendation of the Register of Copyrights, issped » Final Rule setting forth

six (6) classes of copyrighted works that are exempt from the provisions of the
DMCA, including:

Computcr programs in the form of fimmware that cnable wircless iclephone
handseis to connect 1o 2 wircless ielephone communication nerwork, when

circumnvention is accomplished for the sole purpose of Jawfully connecling lo &

Page 3ol 6
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wireless telephone communication network.

71 Fed. Reg. 68472 (Nov. 27, 200) (amending 37 CF.R. § 201.40(b)). The Court finds that this
new excmption does nol absolve the Defendents of liability for their alieged violations of the
DMCA 2t alleged in Counts 10 and TV of TracFont's Complaint, becanse the Defendents’

conduct es alieged in this cast does not come within the 5cOP2 of the new cxemption. The

slicged misconduct and involvement in unlocking TracFone hendsets was for the purpose ol
reselling those handsets for a profit, and pot “for the sols purpose of \gwfully connecting to @

wireless telephone communication nt » Becmue the exemption does not apply 1o the

conduct dleged in this case, there is no need for the Cout 0 address the validity of the
exemption of the circumstances surrpunding its cnactment.

6. Final consent judgment is hereby cntered against the Defendents,
Gregg lser, individuaily, and GAIL Irc. dbla L Comm and Lighthouse
Communications, on all of the claims set forth in TracFone's Compleinl

7 Defendants, and cach and all of thelr represeotalives, RESRS.
assigns, cmployess, indecpendent contractors, relatives, Bssocistes, servanis and
any and all persons md entities in active concert and participation with them who
receive notice of this Order shall be and hereby are PERMANENTLY
ENJOINED fom: .

». purchasing, selling, and/or distributing 2ny wircless mobile phone that they ¥now or
should know bears any TracFone Trademark, any other trademark owned or uscd by
TracFone, or thal al &ny time contained TracFonc's copyrighted and propritary
software (“TracFonc Handsets”). Specificalty, the Defendents are cajoincd from
purchasing and/or sclling il models of TracFone Hangsets currently offered for sale
by TracFone, or that mry be offered for sale in the future, 2s listed and updated
regularly on TracFone's website thal ;s currcntly found 2l
Mwﬂ;ﬂaﬂzﬂ_ﬂm . including, without limitation, the
fonéwing celiular phone hendsels: ’

Nokia 1100 Noia 122}
Nokia 1112 Mokiz 2126
Pagc 4 of 6
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Nokia 2285

Nokia 2600

Nokia 2610

Nokis 3320

Nokia $100

Nokia 252 (Asalog)
Nokia 282 {Analog)
Nokia 918 (Anslog)
Motorola V170
Motorola V176
Motorota C139
Motorota C155
Motorola C261
Motorola C343

Entered on FLSD Docket 0510812007

88iiiled 07/08/2007 Page 140f36

Wotorols V60
Motorola 120
Motorola W370
LG 3280

LG SIS0

1G C1300

LG C1500

LG CG225
Uniden 2000
Uniden Minicel
StarTac
MicroTee
Profile
Lifestyle 500

. refizshing and/or unlocking of eny TracFone Hendset,

c. accessing, altering, eresing, tampering wilh,

deleting or otherwise disabiing

TrscFone's proprictary prepaid celiular software contained within eay and all

models of TracFone Handsels;

d. fecilitating o7 in iny way assisting other persons or entities who Defendants know
or should know are engaged in reflashing andor unlocking TracFone Hendsels

and/or hacking; ahering, eresing, tampering with, deleting or otherwise disabling
the software instalied in TracFone Handscis;

e. reselling, of participating

aintime units, virtime cards, of prepaid

in or facililating the resale by others, of TracFene

zirtime minutes;

f facilitating or in mny way assisting other persons OF entitics who Defendants Tnow

or should kmow are engaged in any of the acts prohibited under this permsnent

Page Seof §
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E

injunction inchding, witbout limitation, (e buying end/or selling of unlocked

TracFone Handsets; | :

g Imowingly using the TracFone Trademerks or any other tradomark owned of used 1

by TracFone, or that is likely to causs confosion with TracFone's Trademarks, !

without TracFone's prior writien guthorization. . i

8. Defendants .md TracFone waive their right 1o appeal from the I‘

entry of this Consent Fina! Judgment and Pomaanznt Injunction. |i

9. The Court reiains jurisdiction over this maticr and the pasties 1o 'l

Ihis sction in order fo puisk any violation of the terms of this Permanent :1

Injunction by 2 finding of contcropt and & payment of damages 10, TracFons !

Wireless, Inc. in an xmount of pot Jess than $5,000 for each TracFone Handse! ;

that Dcf?\dmts gre found to heve purchased, sold, distributed, altered or "

unlocked in violetion of this injuq:tion.

10.  The prevailing pasty in sny proceeding 10 enforce cornp\iméc with :

the terms of this Permanent Injunction shall be entitied to an award of it
attomeys® foes and costs.

All pending motions are DENIED 25 moot and the cast is CLOSED. _

DONE AND ORDERED in Miemi, Florida, this 7 _day of May, 2007. :

The Honorable Paul C. Hue!
United Stetes District Judge

PARDDD233

Copies furnished to:

James B. Baldinger, artorney for Plaintiff
Wayne H. Schwartz, alforney for Defendants
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UNTTED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASENO: 07-CW-20430-GOLDI'HJRNOFF

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC., 2
Florida corporation,

Plainuifl,

vS.

MOHAMMED LALANY, individually and MAX
\WIRFLESS, INC., a Florida COTPOFELion,

Defendants.

FINAL JUDGMENT AND PERMANENT INJUNCTION
AGAINST DEFENDANT MOHBAMMED LALANY

Plaintiff, Trackone Wireless, Inc. (“TracFone™), brought the above-captioned lawsuit spgainst
Defendants, Mohammed Lalany, individually, end Max Wireless, Inc., & Florids corporation

(collecliv.ciy the “Defendants™), alieging tbat Defendants are cngaged in an unlawfu} scheme that
has caused subsiantiel harm 10 TracFone and to consumers generally. Specifically, TracFone
alleges Defendants’ scheme (the “Bulk Resale Scheme™) involves the unguthorized and unlawful
bulk purchase end résalc of TracFone prepaid wireless telephones (“TracFone Prepaid Phones™
or “Phones™), \;namhorizcd and uniawful computer unlocking of TracFore Prepaid Phones,
alteration of TracFone's copyrighted and propriciary sofiware computer code installed in the
£hontes, and ultimate sale of counterfeited Phones 10 unsuspecting end users for profit.

TracFone ealicges Defendents perpeirete the Bulk Resale Scheme by scquiring bulk

quantitics of ‘TracFone Prepuid Phones from retzil stores such 88 Wal-Man, Target of Sam’s

Club, and by soliciting others 1o purchase TracFone Prepeid Phones in bulk for the benefit of

PARDDDZ234
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Defendents. TracFope alleges Defendants nequire the TracFone Prepeid Phones with the actuzl
or constructive knowledge and intent thet the Phones will not be activated for use on the
TracFone prepaid wircless network and that the Phones will be computer-hacked. TracFone
alleges the purpose of this hacking, known 28 »refieshipg” or “unlocking,” is o erase, TEIMOYE
andJor disable TracFone's copyrighted and proprictary software inslied in the Phones, which
cnables the use of the TracFone Prepaid Phones exclusively on TracFone's prepaid wirzless
system. TracFone alleges the reflashed Phones are then trafficked and resold, 8l a premium, s
new under TracFone's rademerks for unauthorized use outside of the TracFone prepaid wi?c\:ss
sysicm.

TracFone asseried clzims pgrinst the Defendents for federal yademark infringement
under 15 US.C. § 1114 copyright infringement u1';dcr 17 US.C. § 106 circumvention of
1echnological measures {hat contro access 1o proprictary software and wafficking in services that
ciccumvent technological MEASURES protecting propriciary soflwere gnder 17 US.C. § 1201, ef.
seq. as 8 violation of the Digital Millennium Copyright Art (“DMCA™, BS pmended, 15USC. §
1051, et. seq.; federl unfair competition under 15 US.C. § 1125; tomious interference with
business relationships and prospective advaniages business relationships between TracFone and
s mmufacturcrs; unfair competition and falsc edventising under § 501.204, Fla. Stat; injury ‘o
business repulation and dilution of merks under § 495.151, Fla. Stat.; fraud; civil conspiracy; and
unjust enrichment. Defendants admit their liability under the claims asserted by TraeFone.

Defendant Mohammed Lalany siicges that Defendant Max Wircless, Inc, was nol
involved in purchesing any TracFone Prepaid Phoncs of other brands of prepeid phones.
Defendant Mohammed Lalany further alleges that he has made only one large bulk Phones

purchase of approximately 373 Phones on or about January 22, 2007. and that he made

PARDDOZ3S
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additional purchases in smalier amounts towling approximatety 407 additional Phones 8t various
limes baween Decermber 2006 and February 2007, Lo that be has oot kmowingly of
intentionally engaged in, and has not knowingly of intentionally facifimicd and encoureged
others o engage in, 0y Bulk Resale Scheme.

The parties have agreed 1o senle the dispute with respect 10 Defendant Laleny and, es
prntinl consideration for such setilement, egreed 10 the entry of this F'lnal judgment and
Pesmeanent Injunction.

he Court, having considered the Complaint, Declrations 2nd Exhibits, Memorandum of
LaW.-md further evidence submined therewith by TrecFone, accordingly bercby:

ORDERS, ADJUDGES and DECREES that:

1. This Court has jurisdiction over all the partics and sl of the claims sct forth in
TracFone's Complaint.

2. The Court finds that TracFone owns all right, e, end interest in and 1o
Incomestable  United  Staies Trademark Registration No. %1 14,692, issued
‘Novembet 18, 1997, for TracFone and Incontestable United States Trademerk
Registration No. 271,017, issued September 9, 2003, for TmcFone (the
“TracFone Trademarks™). The TracFone Trademsrks &rc valid, incontestable,
distinctive, protecuble, famous. have ecquired sccondary meaning and are
associsted cxclusively with TracFone.

3. The Court finds that the conduct alleged by TracFone in the Compleint, although

unknowing and unintentional, constitutes a violation of the following statutes:
fedenl trademark infringemnent under 15 US.C. § 1114 copyright infringement

under 17 US.C. § 106; circumvention of technologice] measures that control
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pooess 1o proprictary software a.nd trafficking in services thal circumvent
technological measures prolecing proprietary sofiwarc undes 17 US.C. § 1201,
eL seq. s » violation of the Digital Millennium Copyright Act (DMCAT. 25
 amended, 15 US.C. § 1051, ef. seg.; federa) unfair competition undes 15 US.C. §
1125: unfair competition and false adverticing under § 501204, Fla. Stst The
Court further finds that Defendant Lalany's conduct, alieged in the Compleint,
agein aithough unknowing &nd unintentional, constitutes tortious interference
with TracFone's business relationships and prospective advantapes business
relationships between TracFone and its manufacturers and unjust cnrichment.

4. The Court finds Defendant Lalany™s tonduet, indcp;ndcnﬂy. in the Bulk Resale
Scheme alleged in the Compluint, although unknowing and unintentional, hes
likely caused substential harm (0 TracFone and the public merest, and will likely
continue to cause subsiantial harm o TracFone and the public interesy, unless
enjoined. Conscquently, TrecFone is cnﬁ.dcd 1o injunctive relief on the claims
aljeged inits ComplainL .

5. On November 27, 2006, the Librarian of Congress, upon the recommendation of

the Register of Copyrights, issued a Final Rule setting forth six (6) classes of

copyrighted works thet art exempt from the provisions of the DMCA, including:
Compuier programs in tbe form of firmware that ensble wircless telephone
handsets to connect o 2 wircless tclephone communicetion network, when

circumvention is sccomplished for the sole purpose of lawfully connccling 10 8
wircless telephone communication network.

71 Fed. Reg. 63472 (Nov. 27, 2006) (amending 37 CF.R. § 201.40(t)). The Count finds thal this
new exemption does not absolve Defendant Lalany of liability for his atleged violations of the

DMCA as alieged in Counts 1l and 1V of TrecFone’s Complaint, because Defendant Lalany's
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conduct as alieged in this case, although unkaowing #nd unintentionsl, does nol ;omc wnhm the
scope of the new exemption. Defendent Lalany's conducs was for the purpose of reselling those
handsets for a profil to others whom TracFone elleges are ?ngag:d in unlocking of hendsets for
use oulside TracFone’s wireless sysiem, and not “for the sole purpose of lawfully connecling 1o
wircless telephone communication network.” Because the exemption does not epply 1o the
conduct alleged in this case, there is no need for the Court to address the validity of the
exemplion or the circumstances surrounding its enactment.

s Final judgment is bereby entered ageinst Defendant Mohemmed Lalany, and in
favor of the f;laintiﬁ. TracFone Wireless, Inc., based upon the findings sd'fonh
herein.

7. Defendant Laleny, and cach anci il of his representatives, agents, mssigns,
employees, independent contractors, relatives, associates, servants and any end al)
persors and entitics in active concert and participation with kim who receive
notice of this Order shall be and hereby are PERMANENTLY ENJOINED from:

». purchasing and/or selling any w'ni:lcss mobile phone, except for their own
personal use, that they know or should know bears eny TracFone Trademark, any
other trademark owned or used by TracFone, or any other model of wireless
mobile phone sold or marketed by TmcFone (“TracFone Handscts™).
Specifically, the Dcfcndml.s are enjoined from purchasing end/or selling il
models of TracFone Handsets currently offered for sale by TracFone, or that mey

b offered for sale in the futurc, as listed and updated regularly on
ht(g:/:‘!rac[:an.rom/acliralion pick brand jsp, TrecFone's website, including

without limitation the following cellular phone handseis:

PARDDDZ238
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"Nokia 1100
Nolda 1112

"Nolda 1221
Nokie 2126
Nokia 2285
Nokis 2600
Nokia 2610
Nokiz 3390
Nokix 5100
Nokia 252 (Analog)
Nokia 282 (Ansiog)
Nokie 218 (Analop)
Motorola V170
Motorola V176
Motorola C139
Motorola C155
Motorolz C261
Motorola C343
Motorole V60
Motorola 120
Motorola Ballina
LG 3280
LG 5150
LG .C1300.
LQ C1500
LG CG225
Uniden 2000
Uniden Minicel
SwarTrae
Radio Shack
MicmoTae -
Profile
Lifestyle 500

b. reflashing and/or unlocking of any TracFone Handset;

c. sccessing, ahering, cresing, tampering with, deleting

05/02/2007

L_cument 1-7  Filed 07/08/2007 Pag .1 of 36
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or otherwise disabling

TracFone's proprictary prepaid celluler software contained within any and 2!l

models of TracFone Handsels;

d. facilitating or in any way Bssisting olher persons or entitics who Defendants know

or should know are engaged in reflashing and/or unlocking TracFone Heandscis

PARDDDZ39
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10.

and/or hacking, altering, erasing, tampering with, deleting or otherwise dissbling
the software instailed in TracFone Handseis:

reselling, or panticipating in or fecilitating the esale by others, of TracFone
aictime units, airime cards, or prepeid sirtime minuies;

facilitating or in any way assisting other persons or entities who Defendants know
or should know are engaged in &ny of the acts prohibited under this permenemt
injunction including, withoul limitation, the buying and/or selling of unlocked
TracFone Handsels,

knowingly using the TracFone Trademarks or eny other trademark owned or used
by TracFone, or that is likely to caust confusion with TracFone's Trademarks,
without TrecFone's prior written authorization.

Defendants and TracFone weive their right 1o appeal from the entry of this Final
Judgment.

The Court reizins jurisdiction over this matier and the parties 1o this action in
order 1o punish any violation of the terms of this Pocrmanent Injunction by &
finding of contcmpt and & payment of damnges to TracFone Wireless, Ine. in an
amount of not less than $5,000 for cach TracFone Handset that Defendants are
found to have puschased, sold, or unlocked in violation of this injunctiop.

The prevailing party in any proceeding 1o enforce complisnce with the terms of

this Permanent Injunction shall be entitled 1o an awerd of its attorneys® fecs and

costs.

PARDDD24D




Case 4:07-cv-02206 . socument 1-'611Bg%iled 07/08/2007 Pa 23 of 36

Case 1:07-cv-20430-ASG Document 20 Entered on FLSD Docket 0510272007 PageB8of8

11.  Pursuant 1o Fed. R. Civ. P. 54(b), the Court finds that there is no just reason 10

deley the eatry of judgment with respect 10 the cleims against Defendant Lalany,

and directs the entry of judgment in accordance with the terms sct forth herein. '

DONE AND ORDERED in Miami, Floride, this ﬁ day of April, 2007.

The Honorabie Alen S. Gold
United States District Judge

Copics furnished to:

James B. Baldinger, atiorney for TracFone Wireless, Inc.

Mohammed Latany
Rau Manias, registered ogent for Max Wireless, nr.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CASE SOUTHERN DTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case No. 05-61956-Civ- ALTONAGA/Turnoff

TRACFONE WIRELESS, INC.
PiaintfT,
vi

PAN OCEAN COMMUNICATIONS, INC.,
SAMAR MUNIR. and SYED M. HUSSAIN

Defendants.
J

FINAL MENT AND PERM NCTION

Plaintiff TracFone Wircless, Inc. (" TracFone™), filed 2 Complaint on Dt':c':rrbcr 71, 2005
assesting tha Defendants Pan Ocean Communications, inc., Samar Munir, snd Syed M. Husszin
(coMectively “the Pan Ocean Defendants™) we purchasing TracFone prepsid wirtless icicphones
from retail stores soch as Wal-Mart, Target of Sam's Club, hacking into and erasing or disabling
the TracFone propriciary prepuid software tha! enables consamers 1o actess TracFons's prepaid
wirciess service, and then reselfing the wicless iclephones s new for use on other wireless
cxriers® networks/sysicms. Based on that conduct, e Comphaint asserts claims against the Pan
Ocean Defendants for federa) tademark infringement and unfair competition under the
Trademark Act of 1946, es amended, 15 US.C. § 1051, ef seq., injury to business repulation and
dilution of mark under Fla Stat. § 495.151 er seq., wnfais compelition and deceplive \rade
practices under Fla. Stat. § 501.204 er seg. circumvention of technological meesurcs that control
sccess 10 propriciery sofliware onder 17 US.C. § 1201 ot seq., tnfficking in services that
circumvent technological measures protecting proprictary sofware under 17 USC. § 1201 o

WPBIETLE
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sep., tortions interference with businzss rhilonships and prospesiive sdvanizge. snd tortious
inlerference with the business rehitionship berween TrscFone and Nokis Comporation ("Nokis™.
On Janury 13, 2006, TrcFone filed 2 Motion for & Preliminary injunction {Docket No. 10) and
a MoLio;i for Expedited Discovery (Docket No. 12) with supposting flechmirms and exhibits and
accompanying memorands of law. The Pan Oczan Defendants have demicd TrecFone's
~ alicgations. This Courl having considered she Comphaint, geclarstions and exhibits, Fnotions,
memoranda of law, and further evidence submitied therewith, aad the partics’ stipuistion
regarding entry of this order,  is hereby:

ORDERED, ADJUDGED, and DECREED that:

i. This Court hes jusisdiction over all the partics end sil of the claims for fcderal
jradzmark infringement and unfair competition under the Trademark Act of 1946, as amended,
15 U.S.C. § 105}, cf seq., injury to busincss repatstion and dilution of mark under Fa. Stal §
495.151 e seq., unfzir competition and geczplive trade practices under Fla, Stal. § 501204 ot

seq., circemyention of icchnological messures that control access {0 propriciary software under

17 US.C. § 1201 er seq., tmfficking in services that circumvent technological measures

provecting proprictary software under 17 US.C. § 1201 e seq., tortious interference with
busincss relptionships and prospective sdvantage, snd tortipus interference with business
relationship between TracFone and Nokia, encrted in the above xction.

2 Plaintill owns all sight, title, and interest in and 1o the trademerks TRACFONE
and NET10 (the “TRACFONE Trademarks™).

3. The Pan Ocesn Defendants wnderstand end scknowledge that TracFone is the
owner of the TRACFONE Trademarks, and recognize and acknowledge the validity of the

TRACFONE Tradcmarks and that such TRACFONE Trademarks are distinctive, proicciable,

2
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famous. has scquired sccondary meaning end s essociated exclusively with TracFone, The Pun
Octan Defendants shali not challenge or in amy way contest the validity or protzcisbilily of the
TRACFONE Trademarks.

4 The Pan Octan Defendants wd any of their represeatatives, subsidiaries, relsied
or nfﬁlin:d entities, agens, officers, direcwor, serveams, and employess, pnd eny und ull pehuns
and enfities in aclive concest and participation with them who receive wotice of this order by
personal tervice of otherwise, shali be md hereby are parmanently enjoineg from:

i purchasing tnd/or selling mny wireless mobile phonz Lhat they know or
shouwld know bears the TRACFONE tndemwrk, bears the NETID
wrademark, bears any other trademark owned or used by TracFone, of eny
other mode] of wireless mobite phone sold or marketed by TrocFons
(“TracFone pbones™:

it cngaging in the slteration or unlocking of any TracFone phones;

{ii.  facifitning or in any way assising othtr persons of entitics that the Pan
Ocean Mm@u know or should know we engeged in altering :or
unlocking any TracFore phone;

fv.  knowingly usiog the TRACFONE trademark, the NET10 wademark, of
any other mask owned or'usad by TracFone, of thel is likely to cause
confusion therewith, without nuthorization,

Y. knowingly misrcpresenling any used producls s pew of in any wsy
infringing oo TracFone's trademerks or kpowingly mismpresenting that

TracFonc warrants the used and/or re-conditioned phones.
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5.

This Comtt herehy retgins jurisdiction over this maticr and the partics o
this setion In ores 10 punish eay violation of the terms of this Final
' Judgment and Parmanent Injunction, infer alia, by 3 finding of comzmpt

of cournt.

S. This Final Judgment wnd Permmment Injunction on Comsenl shall be binding on the
Pan Ocean Defcodants, theif suscessors and assis. ' '

6. Each pany waives its ight 1o appeal from the entry of this Final Judpment.

7. The prevailing party in any peocesding to enforcs compliance with the terms of

this Finel Judgment and Permanent Injunction shall be entitied 10 an award of its attorneys” fees
and costs incurred thereby.

2DON'E AND ORDERED in chambers al Miami, Florida, fhis 2 day of
P ) zmn

4

(o Mz

Unlicd States District Judge

Copiesto:  Jumes B. Baldinger, Counse] for Plaintiff
A. George Cutierez, Counsel for Defendants
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CLOSED
CIVIL
CASE imags rediacts qualty of ofginal mibmisaion
UNTTED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHE!N DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
Cesz No. D&-20012-CTV-AL TORACA/T! ‘wrpof]
NOXIA CORPORATION ‘
1 Firish cocporation, :
Plainiff,
vs.

PAN OCEAN COMMUNICATIONS, INC.,
. SAMAR MUNIR, ind SYED M. HUSSAIN

Defendants.
)]

MWWQE
PYalzif Noda Corporstion ("No¥ix™), filed » Complaist on Juruary 4, 2006 asserting |
that Defendants Pan Occan Commmunications, Inc., Smmar Munir, and Syed M. Hustrin

{colletively " Prn Dccan Defendaots™) erc purchesing NOKIA 1100 and 2600 TracFone

prepuid wirtless tzlephonet from reuil stores svch a1 Wal-Mut, Target o Sum's Club, \
hacking int wd crusing of disabling e TracFope propeietary propeid software that coables
consumers b sceers TrcFene's proptid wirelees servite, and then resclling the wireiess

lephonps 13 new for use op other wireless camiers’ nehvorke/rystzms and in some cawes,

— e O gt

packaging the pbones in souniafeit packaging besring the NOXJA tradernark. Based on that

vor o omnnnnnn

sonduet. the Compltint ssrtt chims agmnst the Pan Occan Defendants for fedend !
tsdemark infringeoent and unfiir competition under the Tndeourk Act of 1946, w H

amcnded, 15 US.C. § 1051, of Feq., injury 1o brusiness repuution and dilution of murk under

x| |
I
AR
|
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DB/v2/2608 10,33 Far 581 B53 736D CAKLTDN FIfLRS YPE Bo2a/001

Fia. Stat § 495.151 a1 seg., unfair comperition exd desepive trade practices under Fla. Sut
§ 501204 1 seg. Togethes with the fling of the Comptaint, on Jzuoary 4, 2006, Nokia fDed
1 motion for preliminary injunction and expedited discovery with supporting declarstions xnd
exhibits and acconmpanying memorends of lsw. Tbe Pen Ocern Defendenty hrve devicd the
allegations of Nokin's Complaim,
The Cowt having considesed the Compleint, Sectirstion exd exhibiu, mentranda of
Yew, end furthar evidzpes sabmined therewith, wd the purfies” stipulation regarding entry of I
this order, it is hersby: .
ORDERED, ADJUDGED, xod DECREED that:
I This Court hes juclsdicion over all the partics and i of he clims for
trademark counterfaiting, trademark infringement, false designetion of origin, end trademark

Alumion urdes the Trademark Act of 1946, es amended, 15 USC. § 105), of seq. end the

riated cawes of action under the common lsw end sututory hw of the Stz of Floside,

namely, Fie. Stat. § 495.151 1 seq., nod Florida's Deceptive and Unfeir Trade Practices Act,

v — e

Fhx Stat, § 501204 ef seq., wxserted in the ebove action.

2 Ph:\n\iﬂwnsaﬂﬁm:iuc.mdinmmmdwdnu—:dmntﬂom

- ——r W——

including U.S. Trademark Registation Nos. 2,676,153 and Ne. 1,570,692 for the mark

e e B e

NOXIA, among other registrations which registrations are valid, subsinting and in full Force
tnd effect (the “NOKIA Trademark™).

3. The Pan Ocean Delendants undertand and ackpowicdge thet Nokis is the
owner of the NOKIA Trademurk, wnd recopuize and scknowisdpe the validity of the NOKIA

Tradornark and tat such NOKIA Trademuk is disuncrive, protecuble, funous, bas sequired !

e - — —— 0 ¢ —
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secondary meining md is esocined ecchusively with Nokie, The Pan Osean Defendints
chall not challenge of in sy wey contest the validity or protectability of the NOKIA
Toademnrk. .
¢ The Pan Ocomn Defendants and ny of their representatives, subsidincs,
relaied of affilimied entitics, spents, servasts, offieart, dineclors i employezs, wd any md
allpersousndmﬁﬁnhnuiqumimdpuﬁcbnionﬁmmwbomciﬂnoﬁuﬁ
\his order by persomal service orothuwin.shlﬂbtmdbacby'mpammndy enjoined
Gom: .
i cogaging in the altmation or unlocking of xoy ncw wirtless mobile

phobe manufactared by Nokis (™Mol phone™).

F'-

imowingly facilitating of in a0y way essisting other persons oF tatiticy
thuth?mocunbdmd:m}:\:wu:haﬂdbwwmmzuudh
ahering of unlocking any Nokia wireless phoe; .
.  using the wademark NOXIA, or my oiber mak that is likely to e
confusion therowith as proscibed by the Lanhem Acy 15 US.C §
1051 ¢f seq. and the cxse precadent thertunder, withowt suibbrizaton;
iv.  Imowipgly miscpresenting the nurare or quality of say Nokia products
offered, marketed, or soid by the Pan Occan Defendants (Pen Occan
Defendinty mry reasombly rely upon the rpitsentations by third
putics madt 1o the in this regerd, 30 long s fclim:: is in good
faithy, '

e e e

i
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V. selling wied pndhon recondiioned Nokds mebile phoser or facilitating

of in vy wey essisting other persons of entities that the Poy Ocetn

Defendants Inew o should krve known were engaped in selling veed
end/os reconditioned Nokis mobile phones that do not comply with the
legal prremeters 5ot forth in Prestonertes, In v, Coty, 264 US, 359
(1524) md ins pogeny (Pia Ocszn Defeodmnts muy reasombly rely
upon the representations by third partier made 10 them in this repasd,
% Jong et relience is in pood fasth);

vii  Inowingly mixepresenting any used peodosls s new or in mny wry
infringing on Notis's usdemarts or misreprrseming that Nola
wanrnts the used xndfor retonditonsd phones (Pan Occan Defeodunts
muy rezsonably rely upon the represcatations by third parties made to

them in tis regerd o long as relience is in good (i) ;

vii. Ipowingly dealop in ey wry with comnterfeit Nokii produets
incuding. bt pot limited 1o counterfeit NOKIA boxes as thown in

Exhibit Cto the Compisint;

e s et e G

vili.  shall not purchese, distribwie or sell NOXIA products tha! the Pan
Ocesn Defendants acquired, obeined or purchased outside the United
Surtes, nor chall the Pen Ocemn Defendams purchase, distribute, or sell
gy maket NOKIA products thm are materiadly difficent Gom i |
suthorized NOKIA products meant for sals in the United Sties. See P!
Ferrero USA, Jnc-v. Ozok Treding, Ine., 952 F.2¢ &4 (2™ Cir. 1991);

PARODO24%
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i shall not purchese, disiribune or soll pew gennine NOKIA products that
m»ctpid:;;adinduahuri;hdpcnﬁa;. ’ .
s, This Ful Judgment tnd Permanent Injunciion on Cousent shall be
binding on the Pan Ocean Defendantt, teir successors and assignt.
s Each pesty waives itz right o appeal from the entwy of this Find
Yud pmet,
1 This Cown hereby rehdns jurirdiction over fthis matter nd the partizs W this

- mwen m e s

action in orier 1o punish apy visleion of bt terres of this Final Judgment and Pormanent
Injunction by a finding of contempt.

5. The prevelling prrty in ey proceeding 1o cnforee complisnce with the torms
of thit Fid Judpment and Permunent Injunction shall be emtitied 1o ea ewmrd of its

anomeys'. fees and o513 incanred thereby.

DONE AXD D!Dm.ﬂ)inch:mbntu}-ﬁud,ﬂoﬁd.gl}n’:_gdly of August |

e S g— ¢ ¢
et St St et et

(ol ./ bt |

BON. CECILIA M. ALTORAGA
Utltad States District Judge l

—— - — A ————— ———

Copiztto:  Robert §. Wedsbein, Counise] for Pleintiff
A George Outienrez, Counsel for Defendenis

1
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